m VIVITSU
® CA Intermediate

Paper 1

Advanced
Accounting

Chapter-wise compilation
of RTP, MTP and PYP

May'24

@ Modified as per new scheme

@ Amended as per May'24
Attempts

Compilation



CA Finalist

(Once you print this write your name in this blank to give you the much-needed motivation. Remember what
you see is what you achieve!)

Disclaimer:

While we have made every attempt to ensure that the information contained in this compilation has
been obtained from reliable sources (from the answers given by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India), Vivitsu is not responsible for any errors or omissions, or for the results obtained from the use
of this information. All information on this site is provided "as is," with no guarantee of completeness,
accuracy, timeliness, or of the results obtained from the use of this information, and without warranty
of any kind, express or implied, including, but not limited to warranties of performance,
merchantability, and fitness for a particular purpose.

In no event will Vivitsu, its related partnerships or corporations, or the partners, agents, or employees
thereof be liable to you or anyone else for any decision made or action taken in reliance on the
information on this site or for any consequential, special, or similar damages, even if advised of the
possibility of such damages.

This compilation is presented for informational and educational purposes and should not be
considered a formal book or publication.

It is essential to use critical thinking and judgment when applying the knowledge and information
provided in this compilation. The compiler does not endorse or promote any specific products,
services, or organizations mentioned in this compilation.

By using this compilation, readers agree to accept full responsibility for their actions and decisions
based on the information and content provided, and they acknowledge the limitations and potential
risks associated with any compilation of educational materials.
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GETTING THE MOST FROM THIS BOOK

A QUICK GUIDE

INITIAL READING

After your initial reading of a
particular chapter in your
study material, go through the
questions in our 3, 5, and 11
attempt’s compilations,
focusing on the chapter
you've just covered. Make
note of challenging questions
for later reference.

FIRST REVISION

2 During your first revision, revisit the marked questions.
If you still can't answer them, highlight them in red and
review the related concepts to improve your
understanding. This process helps you to grasp the key
concepts and address your weak points

KEEP GOING WITH THE
REVISIONS

Repeat the reading and revision process
as often as possible before your exams.
Each iteration will enhance your
confidence and knowledge.

EXAMINERS COMMENTS

Pay attention to the examiner's comments in
our compilations, as they highlight common
mistakes. Learning from these errors will
help you avoid them in your exams




Frequently Asked Questions

1. Why RTP’s, MTP’s and PYP’s?
RTP’s, MTP’s, and PYP’s are extremely important to ensure that you reproduce ICAIl language.
These questions train you to understand what is important and what is expected of you.
At least 41% of questions™* are asked from previous RTP’s, MTP’s and PYP’s.

2. Whatis included?
In this compiler, all questions from the last 3, 5 or 11 attempts depending on the one you have
selected will be available. There will be references to the marks and the attempt from which
they were asked. Identical or similar questions have been removed and references for both
attempts are mentioned.

3. What is the benefit of Chapter-wise?
We have categorized each and every question from all Old RTPs, MTP’s, and PYP’s into
chapters. This means that you don't have to wait until you've completed your entire syllabus
to tackle an RTP, MTP, or past paper. You can start solving these questions to check your
conceptual clarity right after finishing a particular chapter.

4. What does amended for the latest attempt mean?
When we reviewed all the questions from the past 11 attempts of RTP, MTP, and PYP’S, we
didn't just segregate them Chapterwise; we also updated them to reflect the latest provisions.
All the answers provided in the compilation are applicable for the May 2024 examination. So,
there's no need to stress about outdated or incorrect information.

5. How are Old RTP’s, MTP’s & PYP’s beneficial for me?

All old RTPs, MTPs, and PYPs have been organized according to the new syllabus issued by ICAL.
This means that if a specific chapter from the old scheme is not included in the new scheme,
it has been omitted. If a particular chapter in the new scheme is based on concepts from two
or more chapters in the old scheme, it has been adapted to align with how the chapter should
be in the new scheme. If a chapter is only partially included in the new scheme, the questions
related to those specific concepts are only included in the corresponding chapter of the new
scheme. A comprehensive reconciliation of the chapters between the new scheme and the old
scheme is provided on the following page.

6. What if a new attempt is added post my purchase?
If you have purchased materials for the May 2024 attempt, you will receive a file with the
guestions segregated Chapterwise specifically for that attempt.

7. What does N/A mean?
It could mean any of the following:
1. No questions from that chapter have been included in the selected attempts.
2. The chapteris newly introduced, and as a result, no questions have been previously asked
in RTP’s, MTP’s, or PYP’s.

L
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Reconciliation of chapters of the new scheme (May’24) with old course
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7.2 AS 5- Net Profit or Loss for the period, Prior Paper5 Same
period items & Changes in Accounting
policies
7.3 AS 11- The Effects of Changes in Foreign Paper1l Same
Exchange rates
7.4 AS 22- Accounting for Taxes on Income Paper 5 Same
8 Revenue Based Accounting Standards
8.1 AS 7- Construction Contracts Paper 5 Same
8.2 AS 9- Revenue Recognition Paper 5 Same
9 Other Accounting Standards
9.1 AS 12-Accounting for Government Grants Paper 1 Same
9.2 AS 14- Accounting for Amalgamation Paper 5 Same
10 Accounting Standards for Consolidated
Financial Statement
10.1 AS 21- Consolidated Financial Statement Paper 5 Same
10.2 AS 23- Accounting for Investments in Paper5 Same
Associates in  Consolidated  Financial
Statements
10.3 AS 27- Financial Reporting of Interests in Paper5 Same
Joint Ventures
11 Financial Statements of Companies
11.1 Preparation of Financial Statements Paper 1 Same
11.2 Cash Flow Statement Paper 1 Same
12 Buyback of Securities Paper 5 Same
13 Amalgamation of Companies Paper 5 Same
14 Accounting  for Reconstruction of Paper5 Same
Companies
15 Accounting for Branches including Foreign Paper1 Same

Branches

*These Chapters were earlier a part of CA Final Paper 1: Financial Reporting
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15  Accounting for Branches including Foreign Branches 15.1-15.37

21 MTPs: March’18, April’l8, Aug’l8, Oct’18, May’19, April’l9, Oct’19,
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22, April '22, Sep '22, Oct '22, March ’23, April '23, Sep '23 &
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21, May ’22, Nov ’22, May ’23, Nov ‘23
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Chapter 1

Introduction to Accounting Standards
Question 1
"Accounting Standards standardize diverse accounting policies with a view to eliminate the non-
comparability of financial statements and improve the reliability of financial statements." Discuss and
explain the benefits of Accounting Standards. (MTP 5 Marks, Nov’21 & April ‘23) (PYP 5 Marks Nov’18,)
Answer 1
Accounting Standards standardize diverse accounting policies with a view to eliminate the non-
comparability of financial statements and improve the reliability of financial statements. Accounting
Standards provide a set of standard accounting policies, valuation norms and disclosure requirements.
Accounting standards aim at improving the quality of financial reporting by promoting comparability,
consistency and transparency, in the interests of users of financial statements. The following are the
benefits of Accounting Standards:

(i) Standardization of alternative accounting treatments: Accounting Standards reduce to a
reasonable extent confusing variations in the accounting treatment followed for the purpose of
preparation of financial statements.

(i) Requirements for additional disclosures: There are certain areas where important is not
statutorily required to be disclosed. Standards may call for disclosure beyond that required by
law.

(iii) Comparability of financial statements: The application of accounting standards would facilitate
comparison of financial statements of different companies situated in India and facilitate
comparison, to a limited extent, of financial statements of companies situated in different parts
of the world. However, it should be noted in this respect that differences in the institutions,
traditions and legal systems from one country to another give rise to differences in Accounting
Standards adopted in different countries.

Question 2
Explain the objective of 'Accounting Standards’ in brief. State the advantages of setting Accounting
Standards. (PYP 4 Marks Nov ’22, Old & New SM)
Answer 2
Accounting Standards are the written policy documents issued by Government relating to various

aspects of measurement, treatment, presentation and disclosure of accounting transactions and
events.

Following are the objectives of Accounting Standards:

a. Accounting Standards harmonize the diverse accounting policies and practices followed by
different companies in India.

b. Accounting Standards facilitate the preparation of financial statements and make them
comparable.

¢.  Accounting Standards give a sense of faith and reliability to the users.

The main advantages of setting accounting standards are as follows:
a. Accounting Standards make the financial statements of different companies comparable which
helps investors in decision making.

b.  Accounting Standards prevent any misleading accounting treatment.

c.  Accounting Standards prevent manipulation of data by the management.

Prakshal Shah | 8779794646
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Chapter 2
Framework for Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements

Question 1
Explain in brief, the alternative measurement bases, for determining the value at which an element can
be recognized in the Balance Sheet or Statement of Profit and Loss. [MTP 5 Marks March 19 & April ‘19,
March’21,0ct ‘23] (RTP Nov 18)

Answer 1
The Framework for Recognition and Presentation of Financial statements recognizes four alternative
measurement bases for the purpose of determining the value at which an element can be recognized in the
balance sheet or statement of profit and loss. These bases are: (i)Historical Cost; (ii)Current cost (iii)
Realizable (Settlement) Value and (iv) Present Value.
A brief explanation of each measurement basis is as follows:

1. Historical Cost: Historical cost means acquisition price. According to this, assets are recorded at an amount
of cash or cash equivalent paid or the fair value of the asset at the time of acquisition. Liabilities are
generally recorded at the amount of proceeds received in exchange for the obligation.

2. Current Cost: Current cost gives an alternative measurement basis. Assets are carried out at the amount of
cash or cash equivalent that would have to be paid if the same or an equivalent asset was acquired
currently. Liabilities are carried at the undiscounted amount of cash or cash equivalents that would be
required to settle the obligation currently.

3. Realizable (Settlement) Value: As per realizable value, assets are carried at the amount of cash or cash
equivalents that could currently be obtained by selling the assets in an orderly disposal. Liabilities are
carried at their settlement values; i.e. the undiscounted amount of cash or cash equivalents paid to satisfy
the liabilities in the normal course of business.

4. Present Value: Under present value convention, assets are carried at present value of future net cash flows
generated by the concerned assets in the normal course of business. Liabilities under this convention are
carried at present value of future net cash flows that are expected to be required to settle the liability in
the normal course of business.

Question 2
"One of the characteristics of financial statements is neutrality"- Do you agree with this statement?
Comment. [MTP March ‘18, 5 Marks, PYP Nov 18 5 Marks, Old & New SM)

Answer 2
Yes, one of the characteristics of financial statements is neutrality. To be reliable, the information contained
in financial statement must be neutral, that is free from bias.

Financial Statements are not neutral if by the selection or presentation of information, the focus of analysis
could shift from one area of business to another thereby arriving at a totally different conclusion on the
business results.

For example, if the assets of a company primarily consist of trade receivables and insurance claims and the
financial statements do not specify that the insurance claims have been lying unrealized for a number of
years or that a few key trade receivables have not given balance confirmation certificates, an erroneous
conclusion may be drawn on the liquidity of the company. Financial statements are said to depict the true
and fair view of the business of the organization by virtue of neutrality.

Question 3
Opening Balance Sheet of Mr. A is showing the aggregate value of assets, liabilities and equity Rs. 8
lakh, Rs. 3 lakh and Rs. 5 lakh respectively. During accounting period, Mr. A has the following
transactions:
(1) Earned 10% dividend on 2,000 equity shares held of Rs. 100 each
(2) Paid Rs. 50,000 to creditors for settlement of Rs. 70,000

Prakshal Shah | 8779794646 Chapter 2 Framework for preparation and presentation of Financial Statements



(3) Rent of the premises is outstanding Rs. 10,000
(4) Mr. A withdrew Rs. 9,000 for his personal use.
You are required to show the effect of above transactions on Balance Sheet in the form of Assets -
Liabilities = Equity after each transaction. (MTP 5 Marks April 21, April 22, Old & New SM)

Answer 3

Q

VIVITSU
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Effects of each transaction on Balance sheet of the trader is shown below:
Transactions Assets - Liabilities Equity
Rs. lakh Rs. lakh Rs. lakh
Opening 8.00 - 3.00 5.00
(1) Dividend earned 8.20 - 3.00 5.20
(2) Settlement of Creditors 7.70 - 2.30 5.40
(3) Rent Outstanding 7.70 - 2.40 5.30
(4) Drawings 7.61 - 2.40 5.21

Question 4

2.2

State under which head the following accounts should be classified in Balance Sheet, as per Schedule lli
of the Companies Act, 2013:

(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(vii)
(viii)
Answer 4
(i)
(i)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(vii)

(viii)

Question 5

Share application money received in excess of issued share capital.
Share option outstanding account.

Unpaid matured debenture and interest accrued thereon.
Uncalled liability on shares and other partly paid investments.

Calls unpaid.

Intangible Assets under development.
Money received against share warrant.
Cash equivalents. (MTP 4 Marks, Mar’22, 5 Marks, April’19)

Current Liabilities/Other Current Liabilities

Shareholders' Fund / Reserve & Surplus

Current liabilities/Other Current Liabilities
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Shareholders' Fund / Share Capital

Property, Plant & Equipment

Shareholders' Fund/Money received against share warrants

Current Assets

How will a company classify its investment in preference shares, which are convertible into equity
shares within one year from the balance sheet date? Will it classify the investment as a current asset or

a non-current asset? Explain. (MTP 5 Marks, March’19, Oct’18, Aug’18, Mar’18)

Answer 5

In accordance with the Schedule Ill, an investment realizable within 12 months from the reporting date is
classified as a current asset. Such realisation should be in the form of cash or cash equivalents, rather than
through conversion of one asset into another non-current asset. Hence, company must classify such an
investment as a non-current asset, unless it expects to sell the preference shares or the equity shares on
conversion and realise cash within 12 months.

Prakshal Shah | 8779794646
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Question 6

information relating to assets and liabilities:

Q

M/s Shyam, a proprietorship firm runs a business of stationary items. It provides you the following

Assets & Liabilities As on 01.04.2019 As on 31.03.2020
Creditors 20,000 15,000
Outstanding Expenses 600 800
Property, Plant & Equipment 12,000 13,000
Stock 10,000 12,000
Cash in hand 7,500 2,000
Cash at Bank 2,500 10,000
Debtors ? 18,000
Details of the year’s transactions are as follows:
(1) Discounts allowed to Debtor 4,000
(2) Returns from debtors 1,450
(3) Bad debts 500
(4) Total sales (Cash and Credit) 72,000
(5) Discount allowed by creditors 700
(6) Returns to creditors 400
(7) Receipts from debtors paid into Bank 76,000
(8) Cash purchases 1,000
(9) Expenses paid by cash 9,000
(10) | Drawings by cheque 500
(11) | Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment by cheque 4,000
(12) | Cash deposited into bank 5,000
(13) | Cash withdrawn from bank 9,000
(14) | Payments to creditors by cheque 60,000

VIVITSU
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2.3

No Property, Plant & Equipment were sold during the year. Any difference in cash account to be
considered as cash sales. You are required to prepare Trading and Profit & Loss Account for the year
ended 31.03.2020 and the Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2020 from the given information. (MTP 16 Marks,

Oct "21, May’20)

Answer 6
In the books of M/s Shyam Trading and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2020
Particulars X X Particulars X X
To Opening stock 10,000 By Sales:
To Purchases: Cash 500
Cash 1,000 Credit 71,500
Credit (W.N. 3) 56,100 Less: Returns (1450) 70,550
57,100 By Closing Stock 12,000
Less: Returns 400 56,700
To Gross Profit ¢/d 15,850
82,550 82,550
To Discount allowed 4,000 By Gross profit b/d 15,850
To Bad Debts 500 By Discount received 700

Prakshal Shah | 8779794646
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To General expenses (W.N. 5) 9,200 By Net Loss (balancing fig.) 150
To Depreciation (W.N. 4) 3,000
16,700 ) 16,700
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020
Liabilities B Assets X
Capital (W.N. 1) 39,850 Property, Plant & Equipment 12,000
Less: Net loss 150 Add: New asset 4,000
39,700 16,000
Less: Drawings 500 39,200| Less: Depreciation 3,000 13,000
Sundry creditors 15,000| Stock in trade 12,000
Expenses 800| Sundry debtors (W.N. 2) 18,000
outstanding
Cash in hand 2,000
Cash in Bank 10,000
55,000 55,000
Working Notes:
(1) Ascertainment of Opening Capital - Statement of Affairs as at 1.4.19
Liabilities £ Assets b
sundry creditors 20,000 | Property, Plant& 12,000
Equipment
Outstanding expenses 600 Stock 10,000
Prasad’s Capital Debtors 28,450
(Balancing figure) 39,850 Cash in hand 7,500
Cash at Bank 2,500
60,450 60,450
(2) Sundry Debtors Account
X e
To Balance b/d (bal. fig) 28,450 By Cash 76,000
To Sales (72,000 — 500) 71,500 By Discount 4,000
By Returns (sales) 1,450
By Bad debts 500
By Balance c/d (given) 18,000
99,950 99,950
(3) Sundry Creditors Account
X X
To Bank — Payments 60,000 By Balance b/d 20,000
To Discount 700 By Purchases - credit 56,100
To Returns 400 By (Balancing figure)
To Balance c/d (closing balance) 15,000
76,100 76,100
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(4) Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment
b
Opening balance of Property, Plant & Equipment 12,000
Add: Additions 4,000
16,000
Less: Closing balance of Property, Plant & Equipment (13,000)
Depreciation 3,000
(5) Expenses to be shown in profit and loss account
Expenses (in cash) 9,000
Add: Outstanding of 2020 800
9,800
Less: Outstanding of 2019 600
9,200
(6) Cash and Bank Account
Particulars Cash Bank Cash Bank
X X X X
To balance b/d 7,500 2,500 By Purchases 1,000 -
To debtors - 76,000 By Expenses 9,000
By Property,
To Banks E11 (c) 9,000 - Plant & 4,000
Equipment
To Cash (c) - 5,000 By Drawings 500
Togalelbalngkes Py, - By Creditors 60,000
as cash sales)
By Cash (C) 9,000
By Bank (C) 5,000
By Balance c/d 2,000 10,000
17,000 83,500 17,000 83,500

Question 7

The following extract of Balance Sheet of Ram Ltd. (a non-investment company) was obtained:

Balance Sheet (Extract) as on 31st March ,2022

Liabilities E {

Issued and subscribed capital:

20,000, 14% Preference shares of X 100 each fully paid 20,00,000
1,20,000 Equity shares of X 100 each, X 80 paid-up 96,00,000
Capital reserves (X 1,50,000 is revaluation reserve) 1,95,000
Securities premium 50,000
15% Debentures 65,00,000
Unsecured loans: Public deposits repayable after one year 3,70,000
Investment in shares, debentures, etc. 75,00,000
Profit and Loss account (debit balance) 15,00,000

2.5

You are required to compute Effective Capital as per the provisions of Schedule V to Companies Act, 2013.
(MTP 5 Marks, Sep 22 & Oct ‘23)

Prakshal Shah | 8779794646
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Answer 7

Computation of Effective capital

Q

b

Paid-up share capital-

20,000, 14% Preference shares 20,00,000
1,20,000 Equity shares 96,00,000
Capital reserves (excluding revaluation reserve) 45,000
Securities premium 50,000
15% Debentures 65,00,000
Public Deposits 3,70,000
(A) 1,85,65,000
Investments 75,00,000
Profit and Loss account (Dr. balance) 15,00,000
(B) 90,00,000
Effective capital (A-B) 95,65,000

Question

8

VIVITSU
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2.6

Futura Ltd. had the following items under the head “Reserves and Surplus” in the Balance Sheet as on
31st March, 2022:

Amount X in lakhs

Securities Premium Account 80
Capital Reserve 60
General Reserve 90

The company had an accumulated loss of X 250 lakhs on the same date, which it has disclosed under the
head “Statement of Profit and Loss” as asset in its Balance Sheet. Comment on accuracy of this
treatment in line with Schedule il to the Companies Act, 2013. (MTP 4 Marks Oct ’22)

Answer 8

Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 provides that debit balance of Statement of Profit and Loss (after all
allocations and appropriations) shall be shown as a negative figure under the head ‘Surplus’. Similarly, the
balance of ‘Reserves and Surplus’, after adjusting negative balance of surplus, shall be shown under the
head ‘Reserves and Surplus’ even if the resulting figure is in the negative. In this case, the debit balance of
profit and loss i.e. X 250 lakhs exceeds the total of all the reserves i.e. X 230 lakhs. Therefore, balance of
‘Reserves and Surplus’ after adjusting debit balance of profit and loss is negative by X 20 lakhs, which should
be disclosed on the face of the balance sheet. Thus the treatment done by the company is incorrect.

Question 9
The following is the Balance Sheet of Manish and Suresh as on 1 st April, 2021:

Equity and Liabilities g Assets E

Capital Accounts: Building 1,00,000

Manish 1,50,000 Machinery 65,000

Suresh 75,000 Stock 40,000

Creditors for goods 30,000 Debtors 50,000

Creditors for expenses 25,000 Bank 25,000
2,80,000 2,80,000

They give you the following additional information:

(i)

Prakshal Shah | 8779794646
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(i) Stock level is maintained uniformly in value throughout all over the year.
(iii)y Depreciation on machinery is charged @ 10%, Depreciation on building @ 5% in the current year.

(iv) Cost price will go up 15% as compared to last year and also sales in the current year will increase by
25% in volume.

(

vi) Business Expenditures are X 50,000 for the year. All expenditures are paid off in cash.
i

<
~

Rate of gross profit remains the same.

(
(vii) Closing stock is to be valued on LIFO Basis.
(viii) All sales and purchases are on credit basis and there are no cash purchases and sales.

You are required to prepare Trading, Profit and Loss Account, Trade Debtors Account and Trade Creditors
Account for the year ending 31.03.2022.

(MTP 16 Marks April 23 & Nov ‘21)

Answer 9
Trading and Profit and Loss account for the year ending 31 March, 2022
Particulars Rs. Particulars Rs.
To Opening Stock 40,000 | By Sales 4,31,250
To Purchases (Working Note) 3,45,000 | By Closing Stock 40,000
To Gross Profit c/d
(20% on sales) 86,250
4,71,250 4,71,250
To Business Expenses 50,000 | By Gross Profit b/d 86,250
To Depreciation on:
Machinery 6,500
Building 5,000 11,500
To Net profit 24,750
86,250 86,250
Trade Debtors Account
Particulars Rs. Particulars Rs.
To Balance b/d 50,000 | By Bank (bal. fig.) 4,09,375
By Balance ¢/d (1/6
To Sales 4,31,250 of 431,250 71,875
4,81,250 4,81,250
Trade Creditors Account
Particulars Rs. Particulars Rs.
To Bank (Balancing figure) 3,31,875 | By Balance b/d 30,000
To Balance c¢/d/ (1/8 of Rs.
3,45,000) 43,125 | By Purchases 3,45,000
3,75,000 3,75,000
Working Note:
Rs.
(i) | Calculation of Rate of Gross Profit earned during previous year
A | Sales during previous year (= 50,000 x 12/2) 3,00,000
B Purchases (Rs. 30,000 x 12/1.5) 2,40,000

Prakshal Shah | 8779794646 Chapter 2 Framework for preparation and presentation of Financial Statements



Q

VIVITSU

STRIVING TOWARDS KNOWLEDGE

C | Cost of Goods Sold (Rs. 40,000 + Rs. 2,40,000 — Rs. 40,000) 2,40,000

Gross Profit (A-C) 60,000

E F=.60,000 20%
Rate of Gross Profit £=3.00.000 X 100

(i) | Calculation of sales and Purchases during current year Rs.

A | Cost of goods sold during previous year 2,40,000

B Add: Increases in volume @ 25 % 60,000

3,00,000

C Add: Increase in cost @ 15% 45,000

D Cost of Goods Sold during Current Year 3,45,000

E Add: Gross profit @ 25% on cost (20% on sales) 86,250

F Sales for current year [D+E] 4,31,250

Question 10

2.8

What is meant by ‘Measurement’? What are the bases of measurement of Elements of Financial

Statements? Explain in brief. (RTP Nov 21, PYP 5 Marks Dec '21)

Answer 10

Measurement is the process of determining money value at which an element can be recognized in the
balance sheet or statement of profit and loss. The framework recognizes four alternative measurement
bases for the purpose. These bases can be explained as:

Historical cost

This is the Acquisition price. According to this, assets are recorded at an
amount of cash and cash equivalent paid or the fair value of the assets
at time of acquisition.

Current Cost

Assets are carried out at the amount of cash or cash equivalent that
would have to be paid if the same or an equivalent asset was acquired
currently. Liabilities are carried at the undiscounted amount of cash or
cash equivalents that would be required to settle the obligation
currently.

Realizable (Settlement) Value

For assets, amount currently realizable on sale of the asset in an orderly
disposal. For liabilities, this is the undiscounted amount expected to be
paid on settlement of liability in the normal course of business.

Present Value

Assets are carried at present value of future net cash flows generated by
the concerned assets in the normal course of business. Liabilities are
carried at present value of future net cash flows that are expected to be
required to settle the liability in the normal course of business.

In preparation of financial statements, all or any of the measurement basis can be used in varying

combinations to assign money values to financial items.

Question 11

(a) With regard to financial statements, name any five qualitative characteristics and elements. (RTP May’21)

(b) Aman started a business on 1st April 2020 with Rs. 24,00,000 represented by 1,20,000 units of Rs. 20 each.
During the financial year ending on 31st March, 2021, he sold the entire stock for Rs. 30 each. In order to
maintain the capital intact, calculate the maximum amount, which can be withdrawn by Aman in the year
2020-21 if Financial Capital is maintained at historical cost. (RTP May’21, Nov’19) (Same concept different
figures Old & New SM, RTP Nov’18)

Answer 11

(a)

(i) Qualitative Characteristics of Financial Statements: Understandability, Relevance, Comparability, Reliability
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& Faithful Representation

Elements of Financial Statements:
Asset, Liability, Equity, Income/Gain and Expense/Loss

Particulars Financial Capital Maintenance at
Historical Cost (Rs.)
Closing equity
36,00,000 represented by cash

(Rs. 30 x 1,20,000 units) P Y
Opening equity 1,20,000 units x Rs. 20 = 24,00,000
Permissible drawings to keep Capital intact 12,00,000 (36,00,000 — 24,00,000)

ion 12

With regard to financial statements name any four.

(i) Users

(i) Qualitative characteristics

(iii) Elements (RTP Nov 20, RTP May 19, MTP 5 Marks Mar’23)

Answer 12

(i) Users of financial statements:

Investors, Employees, Lenders, Supplies/Creditors, Customers, Government & Public
(i)  Qualitative Characteristics of Financial Statements:

Understandability, Relevance, Comparability, Reliability & Faithful Representation
(iii)  Elements of Financial Statements:

Asset, Liability, Equity, Income/Gain and Expense/Loss

Question 13

A Ltd. has entered into a binding agreement with Gamma Ltd. to buy a custom-made machine
Rs.1,00,000. At the end of 20X1-X2, before delivery of the machine, A Ltd. had to change its method of
production. The new method will not require the machine ordered and it will be scrapped after delivery.
The expected scrap value is nil.

You are required to advise the accounting treatment and give necessary journal entry in the year 20X1-X2.
(RTP May’20, May’23 & Nov ‘23)

Answer 13

Prakshal Shah

A liability is recognized when outflow of economic resources in settlement of a present obligation can be
anticipated and the value of outflow can be reliably measured. In the given case, A Ltd. should recognize a
liability of Rs.1,00,000 to Gamma Ltd.

When flow of economic benefit to the enterprise beyond the current accounting period is considered
improbable, the expenditure incurred is recognized as an expense rather than as an asset. In the present
case, flow of future economic benefit from the machine to the enterprise is improbable. The entire amount
of purchase price of the machine should be recognized as an expense.

Journal entry

Loss on change in production method Dr. 1,00,000
To Gamma Ltd. 1,00,000

(Loss due to change in production method)
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Profit and loss A/c Dr.

1,00,000

To Loss on change in production method

1,00,000

(Loss transferred to profit and loss account)

Question 14

What are fundamental accounting assumptions? (RTP May 19)

Answer 14

Fundamental Accounting Assumptions: Accrual, Going Concern and Consistency

Question 15

Explain main elements of Financial Statements. (RTP May 18) (PYP5 Marks May ’18)

Answer 15

Elements of Financial Statements
The Framework for preparation and Presentation of financial statements classifies items of financial
statements can be classified in five broad groups depending on their economic characteristics: Asset,
Liability, Equity, Income/Gain and Expense/Loss.

STRIVING TOWARDS KNOWLEDGE

@ VIVITSU

Asset Resource controlled by the enterprise as a result of past events from
which future economic benefits are expected to flow to the enterprise

Liability Present obligation of the enterprise arising from past events, the
settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow of a resource
embodying economic benefits.

Equity Residual interest in the assets of an enterprise after deducting all its
liabilities.

Income/gain Increase in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of

inflows or enhancement of assets or decreases in liabilities that result in
increase in equity other than those relating to contributions from equity
participants

Expense/loss

Decrease in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form
of outflows or depletions of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result
in decrease in equity other than those relating to distributions to equity
participants.

Question 16

Summarised Balance Sheet of Cloth Trader as on 31.03.2021 is given below:
Equity & Liabilities Amount (X) Assets Amount (X)
Proprietor's Capital 3,00,000 Property, plant and equipment 3,60,000
Profit & Loss Account 1,25,000 Closing Inventory 1,50,000
10% Loan Account 2,10,000 Trade receivables 1,00,000
Trade payables 50,000 Deferred Expenses 50,000
Cash & Bank 25,000
6,85,000 6,85,000

Additional Information is as follows:

2.10

(1) The remaining life of Property, plant and equipment is 8 years. The pattern of use of the asset is

even. The net realisable value of Property, plant and equipment on 31.03.2022 was X 3,25,000.
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(2) Purchases and Sales in 2021-22 amounted to % 22,50,000 and X 27,50,000 respectively.
(3) The cost and net realizable value of inventory on 31.03.2022 were X 2,00,000 and X 2,50,000
respectively.

(4) Expenses including interest on loan for the year amounted to X 78,000.
(5) Deferred Expenses are amortized equally over 5 years.

(6) Sundry Debtors on 31.03.2022 are X 1,50,000 of which X 5,000 is doubtful. Collection of another X
25,000 depends on successful re-installation of certain product supplied to the customer;

(7) Closing Sundry Creditors are X 75,000, likely to be settled at 10% discount.
(8) Cash balance as on 31.03.2022 is X 4,22,000.

(9) There is an early repayment penalty for the loan of X 25,000. You are required to prepare: (Not
assuming going concern)
(1) Profit & Loss Account for the year 2021-22.

(2) Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 2022. (RTP May’22, Nov’22, PYP 5 Marks May’19) (Same concept
different figures PYP 4 Marks Nov’20, Old & New SM)

Answer 16

Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 2021-22(not assuming going concern)
Particulars Amount X | Particulars Amount X
To Opening Stock 1,50,000 By Sales 27,50,000
To Purchases 22,50,000 | By Closing Stock 2,50,000
To Expenses 78,000 By Trade payables | 7,500
To Depreciation 35,000
To Provision for doubtful debts | 30,000
To Deferred expenses 50,000
To Loan penalty 25,000
To Net Profit (b.f.) 3,89,500

30,07,500 30,07,500

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022 (not assuming going concern)

Liabilities Amount X Assets Amount X
Capital 3,00,000 Fixed Assets 3,25,000
Profit & Loss A/c 5,14,500 Inventory 2,50,000
10% Loan 2,35,000 Trade receivables (less provision) 1,20,000
Trade payables 67,500 Deferred expenses Nil

Bank 4,22,000
11,17,000 11,17,000
Question 17

What are the qualitative characteristics of the Financial Statements which improve the usefulness of the
information furnished therein? (PYP 4 Marks Nov '20, Old & New SM)
Answer 17

The qualitative characteristics are attributes that improve the usefulness of information provided in financial
statements. Financial statements are required to show a true and fair view of the performance, financial
position and cash flows of an enterprise. The framework for Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements suggests that the financial statements should maintain the following four qualitative
characteristics to improve the usefulness of the information furnished therein.
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1. Understandability: The financial statements should present information in a manner as to be readily
understandable by the users with reasonable knowledge of business and economic activities and
accounting.

2. Relevance: The financial statements should contain relevant information only. Information, which is likely to
influence the economic decisions by the users, is said to be relevant. Such information may help the users to
evaluate past, present or future events or may help in confirming or correcting past evaluations. The
relevance of a piece of information should be judged by its materiality. A piece of information is said to be
material if its misstatement (i.e., omission or erroneous statement) can influence economic decisions of a
user.

3. Reliability: To be useful, the information must be reliable; that is to say, they must be free from material
error and bias. The information provided are not likely to be reliable unless transactions and events reported
are faithfully represented. The reporting of transactions and events should be neutral, i.e. free from bias
and be reported on the principle of 'substance over form'. The information in financial statements must be
complete. Prudence should be exercised in reporting uncertain outcome of transactions or events.

4. Comparability: Comparison of financial statements is one of the most frequently used and most effective
tools of financial analysis. The financial statements should permit both inter-firm and intra-firm comparison.
One essential requirement of comparability is disclosure of financial effect of change in accounting policies.

Question 18
Explain how financial capital is maintained at historical cost? Kishore started a business on 1st April, 2019
with X 15,00,000 represented by 75,000 units of X20 each. During the financial year ending on 31st March,
2020, he sold the entire stock for X 30 each. In order to maintain the capital intact, calculate the maximum
amount, which can be withdrawn by Kishore in the year 2019-20 if Financial Capital is maintained at
historical cost. (PYP 4 Marks Jan 21)

Answer 18
Financial capital maintenance at historical cost: Under this convention, opening and closing assets are stated
at respective historical costs to ascertain opening and closing equity. If retained profit is greater than or
equals to zero, the capital is said to be maintained at historical costs. This means the business will have
enough funds to replace its assets at historical costs. This is quite right as long as prices do not rise.

Maximum amount withdrawn by Kishore in year 2019-20 if financial capital is maintained at historical cost

Particulars Financial Capital Maintenance at
Historical Cost (X)

Closing equity (X 30 x 75,000 units) 22,50,000 represented by cash

Opening equity 75,000 units x X 20 = 15,00,000

Permissible drawings to keep Capital intact 7,50,000 (22,50,000 — 15,00,000)

Thus X 7,50,000 is the maximum amount that can be withdrawn by Kishore in year 2019-20 if financial
capital is maintained at historical cost.

Question 19
A trader commenced business on April 1, 2020 with X 120,000, represented by 6000 units of a certain
product at X 20 per unit. During the year 2020-21 he sold these units at X 30/- per unit and had withdrawn
X 60,000. The price of the product at the end of financial year was X 25/- per unit. Compute retained profit
of the trader under the concept of physical capital maintenance at current cost. Also, state, whether
answer would be different if the trader had not withdrawn any amount. (PYP July’21, 5 Marks) (MTP 5
Marks Sep ’23)

Answer 19
Physical Capital Maintenance at Current Cost

In the given case, the specific price index applicable to the product is 125 (25/20X100). Current cost of
opening stock = (X 1, 20,000 / 100) x 125 Or 6,000 unit’s x X 25 =X 1,50,000

Current cost of closing cash =X 1,20,000 (X 1,80,000 — X 60,000) Opening equity at closing current costs
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=X 1,50,000
Closing equity at closing current costs = X 1,20,000 Retained Profit =X 1,20,000 - X 1,50,000 = (-) X 30,000

The negative retained profit indicates that the trader has failed to maintain his capital. The available fund of
% 1,20,000 is not sufficient to buy 6,000 units again at increased price of X 25 per unit. The drawings should
have been restricted to X 30,000 (X 60,000 — X 30,000).

If the trader had not withdrawn any amount, then the answer would have been as below:
Current cost of opening stock =X 1,80,000

Opening equity at closing current costs =X 1,50,000
Retained Profit =X 1,80,000 — X 1,50,000 = X 30,000

If the trader had not withdrawn any amount, then the retained profit would have beenX 30,000.

Question 20

H W NBR

Mrs. A is showing the consolidated aggregate opening balance of equity, liabilities and assets of X 6 lakh, 4
lakh and 10 lakhs respectively. During the current year Mrs. A has the following transactions:

Received 20% dividend on 10,000 equity shares of X 10 each held as investment.
The amount of X 70,000 is paid to creditors for settlement of X 90,000.

Salary is pending by X 20,000.
Mrs. A’s drawing X 20,000 for her personal use.

You are required to prepare the statement of the effect of aforesaid each transaction on closing balance
sheet in the form of Assets — Liabilities = Equity after each transaction. (PYP 5 Marks, Dec ‘21)

Answer 20

Effect of each transaction on Balance sheet of Mrs. A is shown below:

Transactions Assets - Liabilities = Equity

R lakh % lakh R lakh

Opening 10.00 - 4.00 6.00

(1) Dividend earned 10.20 - 4.00 6.20
[10.00+0.20] [6.00+0.20]

(2) Settlement of Creditors 9.50 - 3.10 6.40
[10.20-0.70] [4.00-0.90] [6.20+0.20]

(3) Salary Outstanding 9.50 - 3.30 6.20
[3.10+0.20] [6.40-0.20]

(4) Drawings 9.30 - 3.30 6.00
[9.50-0.20] [6.20-0.20]

Question 21

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)

(5)

Prakshal Shah | 8779794646

As on 1st April, 2021 opening Balance Sheet of Mr. Mohanty is showing the aggregate value of Assets,
Liabilities and Equity X 12 Lakhs, 3 Lakhs and 9 lakhs respectively.

During the accounting period 01/04/2021 to 31/03/2022, Mr. Mohanty has the following transactions:
A liability of X 50,000 was finally settled at a discount of 2%.

Dividend earned @ 15% on 1,000 (F.V 100 each) Equity shares held @ X 12,000.

Rent of the premises paid X 20,000.

Mr. Mohanty withdrew X 10,000 for personal purposes and also withdrew Goods worth
X 5,000 for personal purposes.

X 15,000 were received against Bill Receivables.
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You are required to show the effect of the above transactions on Balance Sheet in the form of Assets -

Q

Liabilities = Equity equation after each transaction. .(PYP 4 Marks Nov ’22)

Answer 21
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Effects of each transaction on Balance sheet of the trader is shown below:
. Assets Liabilities Equity
Transactions =
X lakh X lakh X lakh
Opening 12 - 3 = 9
. 12 -0.49 3-0.50 9.0 +0.01
(1) Settlement of Creditors } -
11.51 2.5 9.01
11.51 +0.15 9.01+0.15
(2) Dividend earned - 25 =
11.66 : 9.16
(3) Rent paid 11.66 -0.20 9.16 -0.20
P 11.46 - 2.5 = 8.96
(4) Drawings 11.46 -0.15 8.96 -0.15
& 11.31 - 2.5 = 8.81
(5) *Money received against 11.31+0.15-0.15
. . - 2.5 8.81
Bills receivables 11.31 _

2.14

*No change as cash received from bills receivable will have impact on individual asset only (will reduce bill
receivables with corresponding increase in cash).

Question 22

Mille started a business on 01.04.2022 with a capital of X 15,00,000. She purchased X 1,500 units of stock
at X 1,000 each. She sold the entire stock for X 1,500 each unit till 31.03.2023.

You are required to calculate the maximum amount which can be withdrawn by Mille in order to keep her
capital intact, if Financial Capital is maintained at:

(i) Historical Cost

(ii) Current Purchasing Power (opening index at 100 and closing index at 125)

(iii) Physical Capital Maintenance

(Price per unit at the end of year is X 1,350)

(PYP 5 Marks May ‘23)

Answer 22
Financial Capital Maintenance at historical Costs
Sr. No. | Particulars Computation X
(i) Opening Equity 1,500 x 1,000 15,00,000
(ii) Closing Equity 1,500 x 1,500 22,50,000
(iii) Maximum Drawing (ii)- (i) 7,50,000
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Sr. No. | Particulars Computation X

(i) Opening Equity 1,500 x 1,000 x 125/100 18,75,000
(ii) Closing Equity 1,500 x 1,500 22,50,000
(iii) Maximum Drawing (ii)- (i) 3,75,000

Financial Capital Maintenance at Physical Capital Maintenance

Sr. No. | Particulars Computation X

(i) Opening Equity 1,500 x1,350 20,25,000
(ii) Closing Equity 1,500 x 1,500 22,50,000
(iii) Maximum Drawing (ii)- (i) 2,25,000
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Chapter 3

Applicability of Accounting Standards

Question 1
M/s X & Co. (a partnership firm) had a turnover of X 5 crores (excluding other income) and
borrowings of X 1.5 crores in the previous year. It wants to avail the exemptions available in
application of Accounting Standards to non-corporate entities for the year ended 31.3.2022. Advise
the management of M/s X & Co in respect of the exemptions of provisions of ASs, as per the directive
issued by the ICAIL. (MTP 5 Marks Oct ’22) (Same concept different figures MTP Oct’18 5 Marks, Old
& New SM)

Answer 1

The question deals with the issue of Applicability of Accounting Standards to a non-corporate entity.
For availment of the exemptions, first of all, it has to be seen that M/s Omega & Co. falls in which level
of the non-corporate entities. Its classification will be done on the basis of the classification of non-
corporate entities as prescribed by the ICAIl. According to the ICAIl, non- corporate entities can be
classified under 4 levels viz Level |, Level I, Level Il and Level IV entities.

Non-corporate entities which meet following criteria are classified as Level IV entities:

(i)  All entities engaged in commercial, industrial or business activities, whose turnover (excluding
other income) does not exceed rupees ten crores in the immediately preceding accounting year.

(i)  All entities engaged in commercial, industrial or business activities having borrowings (including
public deposits) does not exceed rupees two crores at any time during the immediately preceding
accounting year.

(i) Holding and subsidiary entities of any one of the above.

As the turnover of M/s Omega & Co. is less than X 10 crores and borrowings less than X 2 crores, it
falls under Level IV non-corporate entities. In this case, AS 3, AS 14, AS 17, AS 18, AS 20, AS 21, AS 23,
AS 24, AS 25, AS 27 and AS 28 will not be applicable to M/s Omega & Co. Relaxations from certain
requirements in respect of AS 10, AS 11, AS 13, AS 15, AS 19, AS 22, AS 26 and AS 29 are also available
to M/s Omega & Co.

Question 2
What are the issues, with which Accounting Standards deal? (RTP Nov 20)(Old & New SM)
Answer 2

Accounting Standards deal with the issues of (i) Recognition of events and transactions in the financial
statements, (ii) Measurement of these transactions and events, (iii) Presentation of these
transactions and events in the financial statements in a manner that is meaningful and
understandable to the reader, and (iv) Disclosure requirements.

Question 3

(a) A company with a turnover of * 225 crores and borrowings of * 51 crore during the year ended
31st March, 2021, wants to avail the exemptions available in adoption of Accounting Standards
applicable to companies for the year ended 31.3. 2021. Advise the management on the
exemptions that are available as per the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021.

(b) An organization whose objects are charitable or religious, believes that the Accounting Standards
are not applicable to it since only a very small proportion of its activities are business in nature.
Comment. (RTP May ’22)

Answer 3
(a) The question deals with the issue of Applicability of Accounting Standards for corporate entities. The
companies can be classified under two categories viz SMCs and Non-SMCs under the Companies

(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021. As per the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021, criteria

for above classification as SMCs, are:

Prakshal Shah i’§;95%28& Medium Sized Company” (SMC) means, a company-
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e whose equity or debt securities are not listed or are not in the process of listing on any stock
exchange, whether in India or outside India;

e which is not a bank, financial institution or an insurance company;
e whose turnover (excluding other income) does not exceed rupees two-fifty crores in the

immediately preceding accounting year;
e which does not have borrowings (including public deposits) in excess of rupees fifty crores at any

time during the immediately preceding accounting year; and

e which is not a holding or subsidiary company of a company which is not a small and medium-sized
company. Since, XYZ Ltd.’s turnover was ~ 225 crores which does not exceed * 250 crores but
borrowings of * 51 crore are more than * 50 crores, it is not a small and medium sized company
(SMC). The exemptions available to SMC are not available to this company.

(b) Accounting Standards apply in respect of any enterprise (whether organized in corporate, co-operative
or other forms) engaged in commercial, industrial or business activities, whether or not profit oriented
and even if established for charitable or religious purposes. Accounting Standards however, do not apply
to enterprises solely carrying on the activities, which are not of commercial, industrial or business
nature, (e.g., an activity of collecting donations and giving them to flood affected people). Exclusion of
an enterprise from the applicability of the Accounting Standards would be permissible only if no part of
the activity of such enterprise is commercial, industrial or business in nature. Even if a very small
proportion of the activities of an enterprise were considered to be commercial, industrial or business in
nature, the Accounting Standards would apply to all its activities including those, which are not
commercial, industrial or business in nature.

Question 4
List the Criteria for classification of non-corporate entities as level | Entities for the purpose of
application of Accounting Standards as per the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. (PYP 4
Marks Jan 21)

Answer 4

Criteria for classification of non-corporate entities as level 1 entities for purpose of application of
Accounting Standards decided by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India is given below:

Non-corporate entities which fall in any one or more of the following categories, at the end of the
relevant accounting period, are classified as Level | entities:

(i) Entities whose equity or debt securities are listed or are in the process of listing on any stock
exchange, whether in India or outside India.

(i) Banks (including co-operative banks), financial institutions or entities carrying on insurance
business.

(iii) All commercial, industrial and business reporting entities, whose turnover (excluding other
income) exceeds rupees fifty crore (as per amendment- Rupees two fifty crore) in the
immediately preceding accounting year.

(iv) All commercial, industrial and business reporting entities having borrowings (including public
deposits) in excess of rupees ten crore (as per amendment- Rupees fifty crore) at any time during
the immediately preceding accounting year.

(v) Holding and subsidiary entities of any one of the above.
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Chapter 4.1
AS 1- Disclosure of Accounting Policies
Question 1

HIL Ltd. was making provision for non-moving stocks based on no issues having occurred for the last 12

months up to 31.03.2019. The company now wants to change it and make provision based on technical

evaluation during the year ending 31.03.2020. Total value of stock on 31.3.20 is Rs. 120 lakhs. Provision

required based on technical evaluation amounts Rs. 3.00 lakhs. However, provision required based on

12 months (no issues) is Rs. 4.00 lakhs. You are required to discuss the following points in the light of

Accounting Standard (AS)-1:

(i) Does this amount to change in accounting policy?

(ii) Can the company change the method of accounting?

(iii) Explain how it will be disclosed in the annual accounts of HIL Ltd. for the year 2019-20. (MTP 5
Marks March 21, MTP 5 Marks April '22 & MTP 5 Marks April ‘23) (PYP Nov ’18, 5 Marks, PYP 5
Marks Dec’21) (Same concept different figures- MTP 5 Marks Mar’23, RTP May’20 & Nov ‘23)

Answer 1
The decision of making provision for non-moving inventories on the basis of technical evaluation does
not amount to change in accounting policy. Accounting policy of a company may require that provision
for non-moving inventories should be made but the basis for making provision will not constitute
accounting policy. The method of estimating the amount of provision may be changed in case a more
prudent estimate can be made.
In the given case, considering the total value of inventory, the change in the amount of required
provision of non-moving inventory from Rs. 4 lakhs to Rs. 3 lakhs are also not material. The disclosure
can be made for such change in the following lines by way of notes to the accounts in the annual
accounts of HIL Ltd. for the year 2019-20 in the following manner:
“The company has provided for non-moving inventories on the basis of technical evaluation unlike
preceding years. Had the same method been followed as in the previous year, the profit for the year
and the value of net assets at the end of the year would have been lower by Rs. 1 lakh.”

Question 2

State whether the following statements are 'True’ or 'False’ in line with the provisions of AS Also give
reason for your answer.

(i) Certain fundamental accounting assumptions underline the preparation and presentation of
financial statements. They are usually specifically stated because their acceptance and use are not
assumed.

(ii) If fundamental accounting assumptions are not followed in presentation and preparation of financial
statements, a specific disclosure is not required.

(iii) All significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation and presentation of financial
statements should form part of the financial statements.

(iv) Any change in an accounting policy, which has a material effect should be disclosed. Where the
amount by which any item in the financial statements is affected by such change is not ascertainable,
wholly or in part, the fact need not to be indicated.

(v) There is no single list of accounting policies which are applicable to all circumstances. (MTP 5 Marks
April 21, Oct 19, Mar 22, May’20 & Oct ‘23, RTP 5 Marks May 20, PYP 5 Marks May 22, Old & New
SM)

Answer 2

(i) False; As per AS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”, certain fundamental accounting assumptions
underlie the preparation and presentation of financial statements. They are usually not specifically
stated because their acceptance and use are assumed. Disclosure is necessary if they are not followed.

(ii) False; As per AS 1, if the fundamental accounting assumptions, viz. Going Concern, Consistency and
Accrual are followed in financial statements, specific disclosure is not required. If a fundamental
accounting assumption is not followed, the fact should be disclosed.

(iii) True; To ensure proper understanding of financial statements, it is necessary that all significant
accounting policies adopted in the preparation and presentation of financial statements should be
disclosed. The disclosure of the significant accounting policies as such should form part of the financial

statements and they should be disclosed at one place.
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(iv) False; Any change in the accounting policies which has a material effect in the current period or which
is reasonably expected to have a material effect in later periods should be disclosed. Where such
amount is not ascertainable, wholly or in part, the fact should be indicated.

(v) True; As per AS 1, there is no single list of accounting policies which are applicable to all circumstances.
The differing circumstances in which enterprises operate in a situation of diverse and complex
economic activity make alternative accounting principles and methods of applying those principles
acceptable.

Question 3

In the books of Rani Ltd., closing inventory as on 31.03.2020 amounts to X1,75,000 (valued based on
FIFO method). The Company decides to change from FIFO method to weighted average method for
ascertaining the costs of inventory from the year 2019-20. On the basis of weighted average method,
closing inventory as on 31.03.2020 amounts to X1,59,000. Realizable value of the inventory as on
31.03.2020 amounts to X2,07 ,000. Discuss disclosure requirements of change in accounting policy as
per AS 1.(MTP Nov ’21, 5 Marks, MTP Oct’18 5 Marks, RTP May 23, PYP 5 Marks Dec’21, Old & New SM)
Answer 3
As per AS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”, any change in an accounting policy which has a material
effect should be disclosed in the financial statements. The amount by which any item in the financial
statements is affected by such change should also be disclosed to the extent ascertainable. Where such
amount is not ascertainable, wholly or in part, the fact should be indicated. Thus Rani Ltd. should
disclose the change in valuation method of inventory and its effect on financial statements. The
company may disclose the change in accounting policy in the following manner:
“The company values its inventory at lower of cost and net realizable value. Since net realizable value
of all items of inventory in the current year was greater than respective costs, the company valued its
inventory at cost. In the present year i.e. 2019-20, the company has changed to weighted average
method, which better reflects the consumption pattern of inventory, for ascertaining inventory costs
from the earlier practice of using FIFO for the purpose. The change in policy has reduced current profit
and value of inventory by 16,000 (1,75,000 - 1,59,000).”

Question 4

Kumar Ltd. had made a rights issue of shares in 2017. In the offer document to its members, it had
projected a surplus of Rs. 40 crores during the accounting year to end on 31 st March, 2017. The draft
results for the year, prepared on the hitherto followed accounting policies and presented for perusal of
the board of directors showed a deficit of Rs. 10 crores. The board in consultation with the managing
director, decided not to provide for “after sales expenses” during the warranty period. Till the last year,
provision at 2% of sales used to be made under the concept of “matching of costs against revenue” and
actual expenses used to be charged against the provision. The board now decided to account for
expenses as and when actually incurred. Sales during the year total to Rs. 600 crores.

As chief accountant of the company, you are asked by the managing director to draft the notes on
accounts for inclusion in the annual report for 2016-2017 (MTP Apr’19, Aug’18, Oct’22 5 Marks)
Answer 4
As per AS 1, any change in the accounting policies which has a material effect in the current period or
which is reasonably expected to have a material effect in later periods should be disclosed. In the case
of a change in accounting policies which has a material effect in the current period, the amount by which
any item in the financial statements is affected by such change should also be disclosed to the extent
ascertainable. Where such amount is not ascertainable, wholly or in part, the fact should be indicated.
Accordingly, the notes on accounts should properly disclose the change and its effect.

Notes on Accounts:

So far, the company has been providing 2% of sales for meeting “after sales expenses during the warranty
period. With the improved method of production, the probability of defects occurring in the products
has reduced considerably. Hence, the company has decided not to make provision for such expenses but
to account for the same as and when expenses are incurred. Due to this change, the profit for the year
is increased by Rs. 12 crores than would have been the case if the old policy were to continue.
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Question 5

The draft results of Surya Ltd. for the year ended 31st March, 2020, prepared on the hitherto followed
accounting policies and presented for perusal of the board of directors showed a deficit of Rs. 10 crores.
The board in consultation with the managing director, decided to value year-end inventory at works
cost (Rs. 50 crores) instead of the hitherto method of valuation of inventory at prime cost (Rs. 30 crores).
As chief accountant of the company, you are asked by the managing director to draft the notes on
accounts for inclusion in the annual report for 2019-2020. (RTP May ’21)

Answer 5

As per AS 1, any change in the accounting policies which has a material effect in the current period or
which is reasonably expected to have a material effect in later periods should be disclosed. In the case
of a change in accounting policies which has a material effect in the current period, the amount by which
any item in the financial statements is affected by such change should also be disclosed to the extent
ascertainable. Where such amount is not ascertainable, wholly or in part, the fact should be indicated.
Accordingly, the notes on accounts should properly disclose the change and its effect.

Notes on Accounts:

“During the year inventory has been valued at factory cost, against the practice of valuing it at prime cost
as was the practice till last year. This has been done to take cognizance of the more capital intensive
method of production on account of heavy capital expenditure during the year. As a result of this change,
the year-end inventory has been valued at Rs. 50 crores and the profit for the year is increased by Rs. 20
crores.”

Question 6

What are the three fundamental accounting assumptions recognized by Accounting Standard (AS) 1?
Briefly describe each one of them. (RTP Nov’20)

Answer 6
Accounting Standard (AS) 1 recognizes three fundamental accounting assumptions. These are as
follows:

(i) Going Concern: The financial statements are normally prepared on the assumption that an enterprise
will continue its operations in the foreseeable future and neither there is intention, nor there is need
to materially curtail the scale of operations.

(ii) Consistency: The principle of consistency refers to the practice of using same accounting policies for
similar transactions in all accounting periods unless the change is required (i) by a statute, (ii) by an
accounting standard or (iii) for more appropriate presentation of financial statements.

(iii) Accrual basis of accounting: Under this basis of accounting, transactions are recognized as soon as they
occur, whether or not cash or cash equivalent is actually received or paid.

Question 7
(i) ABC Ltd. was previously making provision for non-moving stocks based on stocks not issued for the last
12 months up to 31.03.2020. Now, the company wants to make provisions based on technical evaluation
during the year ending 31.03.2021. Total value of stock X 133.75 lakhs Provision required based on
technical evaluation X 4.00 lakhs Provision required based on 12 months not issued X 5.00 lakhs. (2.5
Marks, Dec ’21)

Answer 7

(i) The decision of making provision for non-moving inventories on the basis of technical evaluation does not
amount to change in accounting policy. Accounting policy of a company may require that provision for
non-moving inventories should be made. The method of estimating the amount of provision may be
changed in case a more prudent estimate can be made.

In the given case, considering the total value of inventory, the change in the amount of required provision
of non-moving inventory from X 5 lakhs to X 4 lakhs is also not material. The disclosure can be made for
such change in the following lines by way of notes to the accounts in the annual accounts of ABC Ltd. for
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the year 2020 -21:

“The company has provided for non-moving inventories on the basis of technical evaluation unlike
preceding years. Had the same method been followed as in the previous year, the profit for the year and
the corresponding effect on the year end net assets would have been lower by X 1 lakh.”

Question 8

What do you mean by 'Accrual’ in reference to AS-1? Also, specify any three reasons for 'Accrual Basis
of Accounting'. (PYP May’19, 5 Marks)

Answer 8

The term “Accrual” has been explained in the AS 1 on Disclosure of Accounting Policies, as “Revenues and
costs are accrued, that is, recognised as they are earned or incurred (and not as money is received or paid)
and recorded in the financial statements of the periods to which they relate”

Reasons for Accrual Basis of Accounting

1. Accrual basis of accounting, attempts to record the financial effects of the transactions, events, and
circumstances of an enterprises in the period in which they occur rather than recording them in the
period(s) in which cash is received or paid by the enterprise.

2. Receipts and payments of the period will not coincide with the buying producing or selling events and
other economic events that affect entity performance.

3. The goal of Accrual basis of accounting is to follow the matching concept of income and expenditure so
that reported net income measures an enterprise’s performance during a period instead of merely listing its
cash receipts and payments.

4. Accrual basis of accounting recognizes assets, liabilities or components of revenues and expenses for
amounts received or paid in cash in past, and amounts expected to be received or paid in cash in the
future.

5. Important point of difference between accrual and accounting based on cash receipts and outlay is in
timing of recognition of revenues, expenses, gains and losses.

Question 9

You are required to comment on the following cases as per the provisions of Accounting Standard-1

‘Disclosure of Accounting Policies’:

(1) Bee Limited has not complied with AS-2 "Valuation of inventories" and the same is disclosed in
the Notes on Accounts. Management is of the view that the financial statements give a true and
fair view as non-compliance with AS-2 is disclosed.

(2) Cee Limited sold its Office Building for ~ 10,00,000 on 1st March, 2023. The buyer has paid the
full amount and taken possession of the building. The book value of the Office Building is °
4,00,000. On 31st 2023, documentation and legal formalities are pending. The company has not
recorded the disposal and the amount received is shown as an advance.

(3) Dee Limited has prepared its accounts on cash basis and the same is not disclosed.

(4) Jee Limited disclosed significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial
statements, in the Directors' Report. (PYP 5 Marks May ‘23)

Answer 9
(1) As per AS-l disclosure of accounting policies is not a remedy for wrong or inappropriate treatment
in accounting. Inthe given case the financial statement does not give a true and fair view as they
are not in compliance with AS-2.

(2) Considering the substance over form as per AS-l, documentation and legal formalities represent
the form of the transaction, although the legal title has not been transferred, the economic reality
and substance are that the rights and beneficial interest in the Office Building have been
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transferred. Therefore, recording of acquisition/ disposal (by the transferee and transferor
respectively) would in substance represent the transaction entered into.

(3) Accrual is a fundamental accounting assumption. If it is not followed by the company, the facts
should be disclosed under AS-I. Hence the company should disclose the fact that the cash basis of
accounting has been followed in the notes on accounts.

(4) The practice followed by the company is not correct. It should be disclosed as part of financial
statements (The director’s report is not part of financial statements).
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Prepare Cash Flow Statement of Tom & Jerry Ltd. for the year ended 31 March, 2020, in
accordance with AS-3 (Revised) from the following Summary Cash Account:
Summary Cash Account

Rs. in '000 Rs. in'000
Balance as on 01.04.2019 210
Receipts from Customers 16,596
Sale of Investments (Cost Rs. 90,000) 102
Issue of Shares 1,800
Sale of Property Plant & Equipment 768
19,476
Payment to Suppliers 12,204
Purchase of Investments 78
Purchase of Property Plant & Equipment 1,380
Wages & Salaries 414
Selling & Administration Expenses 690
Payment of Income Tax 1,458
Payment of Dividends 480
Repayment of Bank Loan 1,500
Interest paid on Bank Loan 300 (18,504)
Balance as on 31.03.2020 972

(MTP 8 Marks May 20) (Same concept different figures RTP May’20)

Answer 1

Cash Flow Statement of Tom & Jerry Ltd. for the year ended 31st March, 2020
(Rs. ’000)
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers 16,596
Cash payments to suppliers (12,204)
Cash paid to employees (414)
Other cash payments (for Selling & Administrative expenses) (690)
Cash generated from operations 3,288
Income taxes paid (1,458)
Net cash from operating activities 1,830
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for purchase of Property Plant & Equipment (1,380)
Proceeds from sale of Property Plant & Equipment 768
Purchase of investments (78)
Sale of investments 102
Net cash used in investing activities (588)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital 1,800
Bank loan repaid (1,500)
Interest paid on bank loan (300)
Dividend paid (480)
Net cash used in financing activities (480)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 762
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 210
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 972
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Question 2
What do you mean by the term “cash and cash equivalent” as per AS 3? From the following
information of XYZ Limited, calculate cash and cash equivalent as on 31-03-2019.

Particulars Amount (X)
Cash balance with Bank 10,000
Fixed Deposit created on 01-11-2018 and maturing on15-07-2019 75,000
Short Term Investment in highly liquid Sovereign Debt Mutual fund made on 1,00,000
01-03-2019 (having maturity period of less than 3 months)

Bank Balance in a Foreign Currency Account in India $1,000

(Conversion Rate: on the day of deposit X 69/USD; X 70/USD as on 31-03-2019)

Debentures purchased of X 10 lacs of A Ltd., which are redeemable on 90,000
315t October, 2019
Shares of Alpha Ltd. purchased on 15t January, 2019 60,000
(MTP 5 Marks Oct 20)
Answer 2

As per AS 3, Cash and cash equivalents consists of: (i) Cash in hand and deposits repayable on

demand with any bank or other financial institutions and (ii) Cash equivalents, which are short

term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and are

subject to insignificant risk or change in value. A short-term investment is one, which is due for

maturity within three months from the date of acquisition. Investments in shares are not normally

taken as cash equivalent, because of uncertainties associated with them as to realizable value.
Computation of Cash and Cash Equivalents as on 31st March, 2019

X

Cash balance with bank 10,000
Short term investment in highly liquid sovereign debt mutual fund on 1.3.19 1,00,000
Bank balance in foreign currency account ($1,000 x X 70) 70,000
1,80,000

Note: Fixed deposit, Shares and Debentures will not be considered as cash and cash equivalents.

Question 3
Classify the following activities as (i) Operating Activities, (ii) Investing Activities, (iii) Financing
Activities:
a. Purchase of Machinery.
b. Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital
c. Cash Sales.
d. Proceeds from long-term borrowings.
e. Proceeds from Trade receivables.
f.  Cash receipts from Trade receivables.
g. Trading Commission received.
h. Purchase of investment.
i.

Redemption of Preference Shares.
j-  Cash Purchases. (MTP 5 Marks Oct ‘18)

Answer 3
(i) Operating Activities: c, e, f, g, j.
(i) Investing Activities: a, h.
(iii) Financing Activities: b, d, i.

Question 4
From the following information, prepare the Cash Flow from Financing activities as per AS 3
‘Cash Flow Statements’ as the accountant of XYZ Limited is not able to decide and seeks your advice:
(i) Received X 4,00,000 as redemption of short-term deposit
(ii) Proceeds of X 20,00,000 from issuance of equity share capital
(iii) Received interest of X 70,000 on Govt. bonds.
(iv) An amount of X 13,00,000 incurred for purchase of goodwill
v) Proceeds of X 5,00,000 from sale of patent.
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(vi) Proceeds of X 12,00,000 from long term borrowing.

(vii) Amount paid for redemption of debentures of X 22,00,000
(viii) Underwriting commission of X 40,000 paid on issue of equity share capital
(ix) Interest of X 1,44,000 paid on long-term borrowing. (MTP 5 Marks Oct ‘21)

Answer 4

Statement showing Cash Flow from Financing Activities

54
Cash inflow from financing activity
Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital 20,00,000
Proceeds from long term borrowings 12,00,000
Total cash inflow from financing activity 32,00,000
Less: Cash outflow from financing activity
Amount paid for redemption of debentures 22,00,000
Underwriting commission paid 40,000
Interest paid on long-term borrowings 1,44,000 (23,84,000)
Net cash inflow from financing activity 8,16,000

Question 5

Following is the cash flow abstract of Alpha Ltd. for the year ended 31st March, 2021:
Cash Flow (Abstract)

Inflows Rs. | Outflows Rs.
Opening cash and bank balance 80,000 | Payment for Account Payables 90,000
Share capital — shares issued 5,00,000 | Salaries and wages 25,000
Collection from Trade Payment of overheads 15,000
Receivables 3,50,000 | Machinery acquired 4,00,000
Debentures redeemed 50,000

Sale of Machinery 70,000 | Bank loan repaid 2,50,000
Tax paid 1,55,000

Closing cash and bank balance 15,000

10,00,000 10,00,000

Prepare Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 315t March, 2021 in accordance with AS 3. (MTP

5 Marks April 21, Mar 22, Old & New SM)
Answer 5

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31.3.2021

Rs. Rs.
Cash flow from operating activities
Cash received on account of trade receivables 3,50,000
Cash paid on account of trade payables (90,000)
Cash paid to employees (salaries and wages) (25,000)
Other cash payments (overheads) (15,000)
Cash generated from operations 2,20,000
Income tax paid (1,55,000)
Net cash generated from operating activities 65,000
Cash flow from investing activities
Payment for purchase of machinery (4,00,000)
Proceeds from sale of machinery 70,000
Net cash used in investment activities (3,30,000)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital 5,00,000
Bank loan repaid (2,50,000)
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Debentures redeemed (50,000)

Net cash used in financing activities 2,00,000

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (65,000)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 80,000

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15,000
Question 6

Classify the following activities as
() Operating Activities, (ii) Investing activities, (iii) Financial activities and (iv) Cash Equivalents.

(1) Cash receipts from Trade Receivables
(2) Highly liquid Marketable Securities without risk of change in value
(3) Purchase of investment
(4) Proceeds from long term borrowings
(5) Wages and Salaries paid
(6) Bank overdraft
(7) Purchase of Goodwill
(8) Interim dividend paid on equity shares
(9) Short term Deposits

(10) Underwriting commission paid
(MTP 5 Marks, Sep 22) (PYP May ‘18, 5 Marks)

Answer 6
(@) Operating Activities: Items 1 and 5.
(b) Investing Activities: Items 3,7 and 9
(c) Financing Activities: Items 4,6,8 and 10
(d) Cash Equivalent: 2
Question 7

How will you disclose following items while preparing Cash Flow Statement of Gagan Ltd. as per
AS-3 for the year ended 31st March, 2022?

() 10% Debentures issued: As on 01-04-2021 X 1,10,000
As on 31-03-2022 X 77,000

(i) Debentures were redeemed at 5% premium at the end of the year. Premium was charged
to the Profit & Loss Account for the year.

(iii) Unpaid Interest on Debentures: As on 01-04-2021 X 275
As on 31-03-2022%X 1,175

(iv) Debtors of X 36,000 were written off against the Provision for Doubtful Debts A/c during the
year.

(v 10% Bonds (Investments): As on 01-04-2021 X 3,50,000
As on 31-03-2022 X 3,50,000
(vi) Accrued Interest on Investments:As on 31-03-2022 X 10,500 (MTP 5 Marks March ’23)
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Answer 7
Cash Flow Statement of Gagan Ltd. for the year ended March 31, 2022

A | Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit as per Profit & LossA/c | -

Add: Premium on Redemption of Debentures 1,650
Add: Interest on 10% Debentures 11,000
Less: Interest on 10% Investments (35,000)

B | Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Interest on Investments [35,000-10,500] 24,500
C | Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Interest on Debentures paid [11,000 - (1,175 - 275)] (10,100)

Redemption of Debentures [(1,10,000 - 77,000) at 5% premium] (34,650)

Note: Debtors written off against provision for doubtful debts does not require any further
adjustment in Cash Flow Statement.

Question 8

Classify the following activities as (1) Operating Activities, (2) Investing Activities, (3) Financing
Activities (4) Cash Equivalents.

Proceeds from long-term borrowings.

T

Proceeds from Trade receivables.

o

Trading Commission received.

Q.

. Redemption of Preference Shares.

e. Proceeds from sale of investment

f. Interim Dividend paid on equity shares.

g. Interest received on debentures held as investment.
h. Dividend received on shares held as investments.

i. Rentreceived on property held as investment.

j. Dividend paid on Preference shares.

k. Marketable Securities (RTP May 20)

Answer 8
Operating Activities: b, c.
Investing Activities: e, g, h, i.
Financing Activities: a, d, f, j.

Cash Equivalent: k.

Question 9
Prepare cash flow from investing activities as per AS 3 of M/s Subham Creative Limited for year
ended 31.3.2019. (PYP Nov.’19,5 Marks, Old & New SM) (Same concept lesser adjustments-
MTP 4 Marks March 21, MTP 5 Marks April 22 & Oct ‘23)

Particulars Amount (Rs. )
Machinery acquired by issue of shares at face value 2,00,000
Claim received for loss of machinery in earthquake 55,000
Unsecured loans given to associates 5,00,000
Interest on loan received form associate company 70,000
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Pre-acquisition dividend received on investment made 52,600
Debenture interest paid 1,45,200
Term loan repaid 4,50,000
Interest received on investment (TDS of Rs. 8,200 was deducted on the above 73,800
interest)
Purchased debentures of X Ltd., on 1st December, 2018 which are redeemable
within 3 months 3,00,000
Book value of plant & machinery sold (loss incurred Rs. 9,600) 90,000
Answer 9
Cash Flow Statement from Investing Activities of Subham Creative Limited
for the year ended 31-03-2019

Cash generated from investing activities Rs. Rs.

Interest on loan received 70,000

Pre-acquisition dividend received on investment made 52,600

Unsecured loans given to subsidiaries (5,00,000)

Interest received on investments (gross value) 82,000

TDS deducted on interest (8,200)

Sale of Plant & Machinery X (90,000 — 9,600) 80,400

Cash used in investing activities (before extra-ordinary (2,23,200)

item)

Extraordinary claim received for loss of machinery 55,000

Net cash used in investing activities (after extra-ordinary (1,68,200)

item)

Note:

1. Debenture interest paid and Term Loan repaid are financing activities and therefore not considered
for preparing cash flow from investing activities.

2.  Machinery acquired by issue of shares does not amount to cash outflow, hence also not considered in
the above cash flow statement.
The investments made in debentures are for short-term, it will be treated as ‘cash equivalent’ and will
not be considered as outflow in cash flow statement.

Question 10
Prepare cash flow statement of Gama Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2021 in accordance
with AS-3(Revised) from the following cash account summary: (PYP July’21, 5 Marks)

Cash summary Account

Inflows X ('000) | Outflows X ('000)
Opening Balance 945 | Payment to suppliers 54,918
Receipts from Customers 74,682 | Purchase of Investments 351
Sale of Investments 459 | Property, plant and 6,210
(Cost X 4,05,000) equipment acquired
Issue of Shares 8,100 | Wages and salaries 1,863
Sale of Property, Plant and 3,456 | Payment of Overheads 3,105
equipment Taxation 6,561
Dividends 2,160
Repayment of Bank Overdraft 6,750
Interest paid on Bank 1,350
Overdraft
Closing Balance 4,374
87,642 87,642
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Answer 10
Gama Limited Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March 2021
Particulars Amount Amount
(X'000) (X’000)
Cash flow from Operating Activities:
Cash receipts from customers 74,682
Cash payments to suppliers (54,918)
Cash payments for wages & salaries (1,863)
Cash payments of overheads (3,105)
Cash Generated from Operations 14,796
Payment of Taxation (6,561)
Net Cash from Operating Activities 8,235
Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments 459
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 3,456
Purchase of Investments (351)
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (6,210)
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (2,646)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issue of shares 8,100
Payment of Dividend (2,160)
Repayment of Bank Overdraft (6,750)
Interest paid on Bank Overdraft (1,350)
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (2,160)
Net Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalent 3,429
Cash and Cash Equivalent in the Beginning of the year 945
Cash and Cash Equivalent in the end of the year 4374
Question 11
Following are the extracts from the Balance Sheet of ABC Ltd.
Liabilities 31.3.2020 31.3.2021
(X) (X)
Equity Share Capital 25,00,0000 35,60,000
10% Preference Share Capital 7,00,000 6,00,000
Securities Premium Account 5,00,000 5,50,000
Profit & Loss A/c 20,00,000 28,00,000

Equity Share Capital for the year ended 31st March, 2021 includes X 60,000 of equity shares

issued to Grey Ltd. at par for supply of Machinery of X 60,000. Profit & Loss account on 31st

March, 2021 includes X 50,000 of dividend received on Equity shares invested in X Ltd. Show how

the related items will appear in the Cash Flow Statement of ABC Ltd. as per AS-3 (Revised)
(PYP 5 Marks, Dec ‘21)

Answer 11
The related items given in the question will appear in the Cash Flow Statement of ABC Limited
for the year ended 31st March, 2021 as follows:

B B

Cash flows from operating activities
Closing Balance as per Profit and Loss Account

28,00,000
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Less: Opening Balance as per Profit and Loss Account (20,00,000)
8,00,000
Less: Dividend received 50,000
7,50,000
Cash flows from investing activities
Dividend received 50,000
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of share capital
Equity shares issued for cash X10,00,000
Proceeds from securities premium
(X 5,50,000 - 5,00,000) X 50,000
10,50,000
Less: Redemption of Preference shares (X
7,00,000 —X 6,00,000) (1,00,000) 9,50,000

Note:

1. Machinery acquired by issue of shares does not amount to cash outflow, hence also not considered

in the cash flow statement.

2. ABC Ltd. has been considered as a non-financial company in the given answer.

Question 12

The following information is provided by Alpha Limited, for the year ended 31st March, 2022:
() Net profit before taking into account income tax and income from law suits but after

taking into account the following items was X 40 lakhs.

(ii) Depreciation on Fixed Assets X 10 lakhs.
(iii) Discount on issue of Debentures written of X 60,000.
(iv) Interest on Debentures paid X 7,00,000.

(v} Book value of investments X 6 lakhs (Sale of Investments for X 6,40,000).

(vi) Interest received on investments X 1,20,000.

(viij Compensation received X 1,80,000 by the company in a suit filed.

(viii) Income tax paid X 21,00,000

(ix) Current assets and current liabilities in the beginning and at the end of the year were as

detailed below:

As on 31.3.2021 As on 31.3.2022

X X

Stock 24,00,000 26,36,000
Sundry Debtors 4,16,000 4,26,200
Cash in hand 3,92,600 70,600
Bills Receivable 1,00,000 80,000
Bills Payable 90,000 80,000
Sundry Creditors 3,32,000 3,42,600
Outstanding Expenses 1,50,000 1,63,600

You are required to prepare Cash Flow Statement from Operating Activities in accordance with
AS-3 (revised) using the indirect method for the year ended 31st March,2022. (PYP 5 Marks

May’22)
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Answer 12
Alpha Ltd.
Cash Flow Statement (from Operating Activities) for the year ended 31st March, 2022
3 ?
Cash flow from Operating Activities
Net profit before income tax and extraordinary items: 40,00,000
Adjustments for:
Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment 10,00,000
Discount on issue of debentures 60,000
Interest on debentures paid 7,00,000
Interest on investments received (1,20,000)
Profit on sale of investments (40,000) 16,00,000
Operating profit before working capital changes 56,00,000
Adjustments for:
Increase in inventory (2,36,000)
Increase in Sundry Debtors (10,200)
Decrease in Bills receivables 20,000
Increase in Sundry Creditors 10,600
Increase in Bills payables (10,000)
Increase in outstanding expenses 13,600 (2,12,000)
Cash generated from operations 53,88,000
Income tax paid (21,00,000)
Cash flow from ordinary items 32,88,000
Cash flow from extraordinary items:
Compensation received in a suit filed 1,80,000
Net cash flow from operating activities 34,68,000
Question 13

Ridgeway Limited, a Non-Financial company has the following activities:
() Dividend paid for the year.
(i) TDS on interest income earned on investments made.
(iii) Loans and advances given to suppliers and interest earned from them.
(iv) Deposit with bank for a term of two years.
(v) Highly liquid Marketable Securities (without risk of change in value).
(vi) Investments made and dividends earned on them.

(vii) Insurance claims received against loss of stock or loss of profits.

(viii) Loans and advances given to subsidiaries and interest earned from them.
(ix) Issue of Bonus Shares.
(x}) Term loan repaid.

You are required to classify the above activities in Cash Flow Statement as per ‘AS-3’. (PYP 5
Marks Nov ’22)
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Answer 13

No. Activities

(i) Dividend paid for the year Financing

(i) TDS on interest income earned on Investing
investments made

(iii) | Loans and advances given to suppliers and | Operating
interest earned from them

(iv) | Deposit with bank for a term of two years Investing

(v) Highly liquid Marketable Securities Cash Equivalent
(without risk of change in value)

(vi) | Investments made and dividends earned on | Investing
them

(vii) | Insurance claims received against loss of Operating
stock
or loss of profits

(viii) | Loans and advances given to subsidiaries Investing
and interest earned from them

(ix) | Issue of Bonus Shares No Cash Inflow/Cash

outflow
(x) Term Loan repaid Financing
Question 14

The summarized Balance Sheets of Flora Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2022 and 31st

March, 2023 are as below:

Assts 31/03/2023 | 31/03/2022

(X) (X)

Goodwill 15,000 28,000
Land 5,75,000 6,00,000
Furniture and Fixtures 48,000 44,000
Vehicles 22,000 28,000
Office Equipment 21,000 -
Long-term Investments 60,000 1,10,000
Stock-in-hand 96,000 88,000
Bills Receivables 18,150 14,500
Trade Receivables 46,000 52,000
Cash and Bank Balances 1,29,850 34,500
Total 10,31,000 9,99,000
Liabilities 31/03/2023 | 31/03/2022

(X) (X)

Equity Shares Capital 6,80,000 5,00,000
General Reserves 90,000 60,000
Profit and Loss Account 93,000 52,000
Capital Reserve 75,000 -
8% Debentures of X 100 each - 3,00,000
Loan from Mr. Andrew - 15,000
Bills Payables 11,000 13,000
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Trade Payables 49,000 45,000
Creditors for Equipment 10,500 -
Outstanding Expenses 4,500 3,000
Provision for Taxation 18,000 11,000
Total 10,31,000 9,99,000

Additional Information:

i)

ii)

iiii)
iv)
v)

vi)
vii)

On 1st April, 2022, one of the vehicles was sold for X 3,000. No new purchases were made
during the year.

A part of the total land was sold for X 1,25,000 (Cost X 1,00,000) and the balance land was
revalued. Capital reserve consists of profit on revaluation of balance land. No new purchases
were made during the year. (iii) Depreciation provided during the year-

e  Furniture and Fixtures X 5,000

e Vehicles X 2,200

Interim dividend of 5,000 was paid during the year.

Provision for taxation for the year 2022-2023 was X 16,000.

8% Debentures were redeemed at par after half year interest payment on 30th September,
2022.

Part of the long-term investments were sold at a profit of 8,000.

Interest income received during the year on long-term investment was 6,500.

You are required to prepare Cash Flow Statement from Operating Activities for the year ended
31st March, 2023 using indirect method. (All workings should form part of the answer)
(PYP 10 Marks May ‘23)

Answer 14

Cash Flow Statement of Flora Limited from Operating Activities For the year ended 31st March, 2023
R X
Net profit before taxation (W.N.1) 92,000
Adjustment: Depreciation on Furniture & Fixtures 5,000
Depreciation on Vehicles 2,200
Profit on sale of land (X 125000 - X 100000) (25,000)
Loss on sale (Vehicle) 800
Profit on sale of long-term investments (8,000)
Interest received (6,500)
Interest on debentures 12,000
Goodwill written off 13,000 | (6,500)
Operating profit before working capital changes 85,500
Increase in Stock in Hand (8,000)
Increase in Bills Receivables (3,650)
Decrease in Trade Receivables 6,000
Decrease in Bills payable (2,000)
Increase in Trade Payables 4,000
Increase in outstanding expenses 1,500 (2,150)
Cash generated from Operations 83,350
Less: Income taxes paid 9,000
Cash flow from Operating activities 74,350
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Cash Flow Statement of Flora Limited from Operating Activities For the year ended 31st March, 2023

R
Net profit before taxation (W.N. 1) 92,000
Adjustment: Depreciation on Furniture & fixtures 5,000
Depreciation on Vehicles 2,200
Profit on sale of land (25,000)
Loss on sale (Vehicle) 800
Profit on sale of long- term investments (8,000)
Interest received (6,500)
Interest on debentures 12,000
Goodwill written off 13,000 | (6,500)
Operating profit before working capital changes 85,500
Increase in inventory (8,000)
Decrease in Trade receivables* 2,350
Increase in Trade payables** 2,000
Increase in outstanding expenses 1,500 | (2,150)
Cash generated from Operations 83,350
Less: Income taxes paid 9,000
Cash flow from Operating activities 74,350

*[(18,150 +46,000) - (14,500 + 52,000)] ** [(11,000 49,000) - (13,000+45,000)]

Working Notes:

1. Net Profit before Taxation

Increases in Profit and Loss A/c (93,000-52,000)

41,000

Increases in General Reserve (90,000-60,000)

30,000

Interim dividend Paid

5,000

Transfer — provision for Taxation

Taxation)

Increase in retained earnings (Net Profit before

16,000

92,000

2. Provision for Taxation Account

R
To Bank (Balancing | 9,000 By Balance b/d 11,000
figure)
To Balance ¢/d 18,000 By Profit and loss 16,000
27,000 account 27,000
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3. Vehicles Account

Particulars (%)
Opening Balance 28,000
Less: Depreciation (2,200)
Less: Closing Balance (22,000)
Book value of vehicle sold 3,800
Less: Sale Value (3,000)
Loss on sale of Vehicle 800
Question 15

On the basis of the following information prepare a Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st
March, 2023 (Using direct method):
() Total sales for the year were X 796 crores out of which cash sales amounted to X 524 crores.

(ii) Receipts from credit customers during the year, totalled X 268 crores.

(iii) Purchases for the year amounted to X 440 crores out of which credit purchase was 80%.
Balance in creditors as on 1.4.2022 X 168 crores
31.3.2023 X184 crores

() Suppliers of other consumables and services were paid X 38 crores in cash.

(ii) Employees of the enterprises were paid 40 crores in cash.

(iii) Fully paid 9% Preference shares of the face value of X 64 crores were redeemed. Equity shares
of the face value of X 40 crores were allotted as fully paid up at premium of 20%.

(iv) 10% Debentures of X 40 crores at a premium of 10% were redeemed. Debenture holders were
issued equity shares in lieu of their debentures.

(v) X 52 crores were paid by way of income tax.

(vi) A new machinery costing X 50 crores was purchased in part exchange of an old machinery.
The book value of the old machinery was X 26 crores. Through the negotiations, the vendor
agreed to take over the old machinery at a higher value of
X 30 crores. The balance was paid in cash to the vendor.

(vii) Investment costing X 36 cores were sold at a loss of X 4 crores.

(viii) Dividends totaling X 30 crores was also paid.

(ix) Debenture interest amounting X 4 crore was paid.

(x) Non-cash expenditure incurred during the current year was 1.2 crores.

(ix) Dividends declared during the current year was 15% on equity share capital (ESC =
‘120 crores).

(x) On 31st March 2022, Balance with Bank and Cash on hand totalled X 4 crores. (RTP Nov ’23)
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(X in crores) (X in crores)
Cash flow from operating activities
Cash sales 524
Cash collected from credit customers 268
Less: Cash paid to suppliers for goods & services and to
employees (502)
(Refer Working Note)
Cash from operations 290
Less: Income tax paid (52)
Net cash from operating activities 238
Cash flow from investing activities
Net Payment for purchase of Machine (50 — 30) (20)
Proceeds from sale of investments 32
Net cash from investing activities 12
Cash flow from financing activities
Redemption of Preference shares (64)
Proceeds from issue of Equity shares 48
Debenture interest paid (4)
Dividend Paid (30)
Net cash used in financing activities (50)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 200
Add: Cash and cash equivalents as on 1.04.2022 4
Cash and cash equivalents as on 31.3.2023 204

Working Note:

Prakshal Shah | 8779794646

Calculation of cash paid to suppliers of goods and services and to employees

(X'in crores)

Opening Balance in creditors Account 168
Add: Purchases (440x .8) 352
Total 520
Less: Closing balance in Creditors Account 184
Cash paid to suppliers of goods 336
Add: Cash purchases (440x .2) 88
Total cash paid for purchases to suppliers (a) 424
Add: Cash paid to suppliers of other consumables and services (b) 38
Add: Payment to employees (c) 40
Total cash paid to suppliers of goods & services and to employees 502

[(a)+ (b) + (c)]
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Chapter 4.3
AS 17- Segment Reporting

Question 1
A Company has an inter-segment transfer pricing policy of charging at cost less 5%. The market prices
are generally 20% above cost. You are required to examine whether the policy adopted by the company
is correct or not? (MTP 5 Marks Nov ‘21 & April ‘23) (RTP May’21, Nov’20, May’22, Nov 19, May’18,
Nov’22, Old & New SM)

Answer 1
AS 17 ‘Segment Reporting’ requires that inter-segment transfers should be measured on the basis that
the enterprise actually used to price these transfers. The basis of pricing inter- segment transfers and any
change therein should be disclosed in the financial statements. Hence, the enterprise can have its own
policy for pricing inter-segment transfers and hence, inter-segment transfers may be based on cost, below
cost or market price. However, whichever policy is followed, the same should be disclosed and applied
consistently. Therefore, in the given case inter-segment transfer pricing policy adopted by the company is
correct if followed consistently.

Question 2

The Chief Accountant of Cotton Garments Limited gives the following data regarding its five segments:

(X in Crore)
Particulars A B C D E Total
Segment Assets 40 15 10 10 5 80
Segment Results (95) 5 5 (5) 15 (75)
Segment Revenue 310 40 30 40 30 450

The Chief Accountant is of the opinion that segment "A" alone should be reported. Is he justified in his
view? Examine his opinion in the light of provisions of AS 17 'Segment Reporting'. (MTP 5 Marks March
’23) (RTP May '20 & May ‘23) (PYP 5 Marks, Jan 21) (Similar to RTP Nov 20 & Nov 19 but different figures)
(PYP 5 Marks May ’23)

Answer 2
As per para 27 of AS 17 ‘Segment Reporting’, a business segment or geographical segment should be
identified as a reportable segment if:
(i) Its revenue from sales to external customers and from other transactions with other segments
is 10% or more of the total revenue- external and internal of all segments; or
(ii) Its segment result whether profit or loss is 10% or more of:
(1) Thecombined result of all segments in profit; or
(2) The combined result of all segments in loss,
whichever is greater in absolute amount; or
(iii) Its segment assets are 10% or more of the total assets of all segments.
Further, if the total external revenue attributable to reportable segments constitutes less than 75% of
total enterprise revenue, additional segments should be identified as reportable segments even if they do
not meet the 10% thresholds until at least 75% of total enterprise revenue is included in reportable
segments.
Accordingly,
(a) On the basis of revenue from sales criteria, segment A is a reportable segment.
(b) On the basis of the result criteria, segments A & E are reportable segments (since
their results in absolute amount is 10% or more of X 100 crore).
(c) On the basis of asset criteria, all segments except E are reportable segments.
Since all the segments are covered in at least one of the above criteria, all segments have to be reported
upon in accordance with AS 17.

Hence, the opinion of chief accountant that only segment ‘A’ is reportable is wrong.
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Question 3
a) Company A is engaged in the manufacture of chemicals. The company manufactures five types of
chemicals that have different applications. Can this company include more than one type of chemical
in a single business segment? Comment.
b) Is an enterprise required to disclose changes in the basis of allocation of revenue and expenses to
segments? Explain. (RTP Nov ‘21)

Answer 3
a) As per AS 17, “A business segment is a distinguishable component of an enterprise that is engaged in

providing an individual product or service or a group of related products of services and that is subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments. Factors that should be
considered in determining whether products or services are related include:

(a) the nature of the products of services;

(b) the nature of the productions processes;

(c) the type of class of customers for the products or services;

(d) the methods used to distribute the products or provide the services; and

(e) if applicable, the nature of the regulatory environment, for example, banking, insurance, or public

utilities.”

As per provisions of the standard, a single business segment does not include products and services with
significantly differing risks and returns. Products and services included in a single business segment may
be dissimilar with respect to one or several factors listed above but are expected to be similar with respect
to majority of the factors. In the present case, the Company should consider whether the chemicals with
different applications, have similar risks end returns. For this purpose, the Company should ascertain
whether one or more types of chemicals are related keeping in view the relevant factors including those
given in the definition of business segment. Chemicals having different applications can be included in a
single business segment if majority of the relevant factors including those listed above are similar. This
would ensure that the chemicals having significantly different risks and returns are not included in a single
business segment.

b) AsperAS17,“Changesinaccountingpolicies adopted for segment reportingthat have a material effect on
segment information should be disclosed. Such disclosure should include a description of the nature of
the change, and the financial effect of thechangeifitisreasonablydeterminable.” Italso states that “some
changes in accounting policies relate specifically to segment reporting. Examples include changes in
identification of segments and changes in the basis for allocating revenues and expenses to segments.
Such changes can have a significant impact on the segment information reported but will not change
aggregate financial information reported for the enterprise. To enable users to understand and impact
of such changes, this Statement requires the disclosure of the nature of change and the financial effect
of the change, if reasonably determinable”.

In view of the above, a change in the basis of allocation of revenue and expenses to segments is a change
in the accounting policy adopted for segment reporting. Accordingly, if the change has a material
financial effect on the segment information, a description of the nature of the change, and the financial
effect of the change, if it is reasonably determinable, should be disclosed.

Question 4
Company A is engaged in the manufacture and sale of products, which constitute two distinct business
segments. The products of the Company are sold in the domestic market only. The management
information system of the Company is organized to reflect operating information by two broad market
segments, rural and urban. Besides the two business segments, how should Company A identify
geographical segments? Do geographical segments exist within the same country? Explain in line with
the provisions of AS 17. (RTP May 22) (New SM)

Answer 4
AS 17 explains that, “a single geographical segment does not include operations in economic
environments with significantly differing risks and returns. A geographical segment may be a single
country, a group of two or more countries, or a region within a country”. Accordingly, to identity
geographical segments, Company A needs to evaluate whether the segments reflected in the
management information system function in environments that are subject to significantly differing risks
and returns irrespective of the fact whether they are within the same country.
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The Standard recognizes that, “Determining the composition of a

business or geographical segment involves a certain amount of judgement...”. Accordingly, while the
management information system of the Company provides segment information for rural and urban
geographical segments for the purpose of internal reporting, judgement is required to determine whether
these segments are subject to significantly differing risks and returns based on the definition of
geographical segment. In making such a judgement, aspect like different pricing and other policies, e.g.,
credit policies, deployment of resources between different regions etc., may be considered for the
purpose identifying ‘urban and ‘rural’ as separate geographical segment. Company A, in making judgment
for identifying geographical segments, should also consider the relevance, reliability and comparability
over time of segment information that will be reported. The Standard, explains that, “In making that
judgement, enterprise management takes into account the objective of reporting financial information by
segment as set forth in the standard and the qualitative characteristics of financial statements. The
qualitative characteristics include the relevance, reliability and comparability over time of financial
information that is reported about the different groups of products and services of an enterprise and
about its operations in particular geographical areas, and the usefulness of that information for assessing
the risks and returns of the enterprise.”

Question 5
PK Ltd. has identified business segment as its primary reporting format. It has identified India, USA and
UK as three geographical segments. It sells its products in the Indian market, which constitutes 70
percent of the Company’s sales. 25 per cent is sold in USA and the balance is sold in UK. Is PK Ltd. as
part of its geographical secondary segment information, required to disclose segment revenue from
export sales, where such sales are not significant? (RTP May 19)

Answer 5
As per AS 17 if primary format of an enterprise for reporting segment information is business segments,
it should also report segment revenue from external customers by geographical area based on the
geographical location of its customers, for each geographical segment whose revenue from sales to
external customers is 10 per cent or more of enterprise revenue. Accordingly, for the purposes of
disclosing secondary segment information, PK Ltd. is not required to disclose segment revenue from
export sales to UK, since that segment does not meet the 10 per cent or more of enterprise revenue
threshold. However, other secondary segment information as per AS 17 should be disclosed in respect of
this segment if the thresholds prescribed in the AS 17 are met.

Question 6

(a) Calculate the segment results of a manufacturing organization from the following information: (RTP
Nov 18 & New SM)

Segments A B C Total
Directly attributed revenue 5,00,000 3,00,000 1,00,000 9,00,000
Enterprise revenue (allocated in 5: 1,10,000
4: 2 basis)
Revenue from transactions with other
segments
Transaction from B 1,00,000 50,000 1,50,000
Transaction from C 10,000 50,000 60,000
Transaction from A 25,000 1,00,000 1,25,000
Operating expenses 3,00,000 1,50,000 75,000 5,25,000
Enterprise expenses (allocated in 77,000
5: 4: 2 basis)
Expenses on transactions with other
segments
Transaction from B 75,000 30,000
Transaction from C 6,000 40,000
Transaction from A 18,000 82,000
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Answer 6
Calculation of segment result
Segments A B C Total
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Directly attributed revenue 5,00,000 3,00,000 1,00,000 9,00,000
Enterprise revenue (allocated in 50,000 40,000 20,000 1,10,000
5: 4: 2 basis)
Revenue from transactions with other
segments
Transaction from B 1,00,000 50,000 1,50,000
Transaction from C 10,000 50,000 60,000
Transaction from A 25,000 1,00,000 1,25,000
Total segment revenue as per AS 17
(A) 6,60,000 4,15,000 2,70,000 13,45,000
Operating expenses 3,00,000 1,50,000 75,000 5,25,000
Enterprise expenses (allocated in 35,000 28,000 14,000 77,000
5:4:2 basis)
Expenses on transactions with other
segments
Transaction from B 75,000 30,000 1,05,000
Transaction from C 6,000 40,000 46,000
Transaction from A 18,000 82,000 1,00,000
Total segment expenses as per AS 17
(B) 4,16,000 2,36,000 2,01,000 8,53,000
Segment result (A-B) 2,44,000 1,79,000 69,000 4,92,000

Question 7
The accountant of Parag Limited has furnished you with the following data related to its Business
Divisions: (" in Lacs)

Division A B C D Total
Segment Revenue 100 300 200 400 1,000
Segment Result 45 -70 80 -10 45
Segment Assets 39 51 48 12 150

You are requested to identify the reportable segments in accordance with the criteria laid down in AS
17. (PYP 5 Marks, Nov 20) (Similar to PYP Jan 21 & Nov 19 but different figures, Old & New SM) (MTP 5
Marks Sep '23) (RTP Nov ’23)

Answer 7
As per AS 17 ‘Segment Reporting’, a business segment or geographical segment should be identified as a
reportable segment if:
Its revenue from sales to external customers and from other transactions with other segments is 10% or
more of the total revenue- external and internal of all segments; or

Its segment result whether profit or loss is 10% or more of:
e The combined result of all segments in profit; or

e The combined result of all segments in loss, whichever is greater in absolute amount; or Its
segment assets are 10% or more of the total assets of all segments.

On the basis of revenue criteria, segments A, B, C and D - all are reportable segments.

On the basis of the result criteria, segments A, B and C are reportable segments (since their results in
absolute amount is 10% or more of 125 Lakhs). On the basis of asset criteria, all segments except Dare
reportable segments. Since all the segments are covered in at least one of the above criteria, all segments
have to be reported upon in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 17.

Prakshal Shah | 8779794646
Chapter 4.3 AS 17- Segment Reporting



@ VIVITSU 435

STRIVING TOWARDS KNOWLEDGE

EXAMINERS’ COMMENTS ON THE PERFORMANCE OF EXAMINEES:

This question was on AS 17 “segment reporting” and examinees were to identify the segments
required to be reported and to discuss whether the view of the accountant considering only
two segments as reportable, is justified. Many of the examinees did conclude correctly that
all the segments are reportable and did not give the justification by identifying, which
segment is reportable, according to which criteria of the standard.

Question 8
M/s Nathan Limited has three segments namely P, Q and R. The assets of the company are " 15 crores.
Segment P has 4 crores, Segment Q has 6 crores and Segment R has 5 crores. Deferred tax assets
included in the assets of each segment are P - * 1 crore, Q - ~ 0.90 crores and R - * 0.80 crores. The
accountant contends all these three segments are reportable segments. Comment. (PYP 5 Marks, May
18) (Old & New SM)

Answer 8
According to AS 17 “Segment Reporting”, segment Assets do not include income tax assets. Therefore,
the revised total assets are 12.3 crores ['15 — (" 1 + 0.9 + 0.8). Details of Segment wise assets Segment P
holds total assets of * 3 crores (" 4 crores— " 1 crores); Segment Q holds " 5.1 crores (" 6 crores —0.9 crores);
Segment R holds " 4.2 crores (* 5 crores — "~ 0.8 crores). Thus, all the three segments hold more than 10%
of the total assets, all segments are reportable segments. Hence, the contention of the accountant that
all three segments are reportable segments is correct.

Question 9
Answer any four of the following:
XYZ Ltd. has 5 business segments. Profit / Loss of each of the segments for the year ended 31st
March,2022 has been provided below. You are required to identify from the following whether
reportable segments or not reportable segments, on the basis of "profitability test" as per AS-17.

Segment Profit (Loss) X in lakhs
A 225
B 25
(o (175)
D (20)
E (105)

(PYP 5 Marks May’22)
Answer 9

As per AS 17 ‘Segment Reporting’, a business segment or geographical segment should be identified as a
reportable segment if:

Its segment results whether profit or loss is 10% or more of:
e The combined result of all segments in profit; i.e., X 250 Lakhs or

e The combined result of all segments in loss; i.e., X 300 Lakhs Whichever is greater in absolute
amount i.e., X 300 Lakhs.

Operating Absolute amount of Profit or | Reportable Segment Yes or No
Segment Loss (X In lakhs)
A 225 Yes
B 25 No
C 175 Yes
D 20 No
E 105 Yes

On the basis of the profitability test (result criteria), segments A, C and E are reportable segments (since
their results in absolute amount is 10% or more of X 300 lakhs i.e., 30 lakhs).
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Chapter 4.4
AS 18- Related Party Disclosures

Question 1
SP hotels Limited enters into an agreement with Mr. A for running its hotel for a fixed return payable to
the later every year. The contract involves the day-to-day management of the hotel, while all financial
and operating policy decisions are taken by the Board of Directors of the company. Mr. A does not own
any voting power in SP Hotels Limited. Would he be considered as a related party of SP Hotels Limited?
Also explain the required related party disclosure requirements under AS 18? (MTP 5 Marks April 21,
Sep ’23, RTP Nov 22, PYP 5 Marks July’21) (Same concepts but lesser adjustments as RTP Nov’'19,
May’19)

Answer 1
Mr. A will not be considered as a related party of SP Hotels Limited in view of AS 18 which states,
“individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the reporting enterprise that
gives them control or significant influence over the enterprise, and relatives of any such individual”. In the
given case, in the absence of share ownership, Mr. A would not be considered to exercise significant
influence on SP Hotels Limited, even though there is an agreement giving him the power to manage the
company. Further, the fact that Mr. A does not have the ability to direct or instruct the board of directors
does not qualify him as a key management personnel.

Related Party Disclosures: Name of the related party and nature of the related party relationship where
control exists should be disclosed irrespective of whether or not there have been transactions between
the related parties.

This is to enable users of financial statements to form a view about the effects of related party
relationships on the enterprise.

If there have been transactions between related parties, during the existence of a related party
relationship, the reporting enterprise should disclose the following:

(i) The name of the transacting related party;

(ii) A description of the relationship between the parties;

(iii) A description of the nature of transactions;

(iv) Volume of the transactions either as an amount or as an appropriate proportion;
(a) Any other elements of the related party transactions necessary for an
(b) understanding of the financial statements;

(c) The amounts or appropriate proportions of outstanding items pertaining to related parties at
the balance sheet date and provisions for doubtful debts due from such parties at that date;

(d) Amounts written off or written back in the period in respect of debts due from or to related
parties.

Question 2

(i) Mr. Raj a relative of key management personnel received remuneration of Rs. 2,50,000 for his
services in the company for the period from 1.4.2020 to 30.6.2020. On 1.7.2020, he left the service.
Should the relative be identified as at the closing date i.e. on 31.3.2021 for the purposes of AS 18?
(MTP 5 Marks March 21, Oct’20, Mar’22, Old & New SM) (Same concept different figures PYP 2.5 Marks
July’21, PYP 2.5 Marks, Nov ‘18)

(i) X Ltd. sold goods to its associate Company during the 1st quarter ending 30.6.2020. After that, the
related party relationship ceased to exist. However, goods were supplied as were supplied to any
other ordinary customer. Decide whether transactions of the entire year need disclosure as related
party transaction. (MTP 5 Marks March 21, Oct’20, Mar’22 & Oct ‘23, Old & New SM)
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Answer 2

(i) According to AS 18 on ‘Related Party Disclosures’, parties are considered to be related if at any time
during the reporting period one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial and/or operating decisions. Hence, Mr. Raj, a relative
of key management personnel should be identified as related party for disclosure in the financial
statements for the year ended 31.3.2021.

(i) As per AS 18, transactions of X Ltd. with its associate company for the first quarter ending 30.06.2020
only are required to be disclosed as related party transactions. The transactions for the period in which
related party relationship did not exist need not be reported.

Question 3
You are required to identify the related parties in the following cases as per AS 18: M Ltd. holds 61 %
shares of S Ltd. S Ltd. holds 51 % shares of F Ltd. C Ltd. holds 49% shares of F Ltd. (Give your answer -
Reporting Entity wise for M Ltd., S Ltd., C Ltd. and F Ltd.) (MTP 5 Marks May 20 & Sep ‘22) (PYP 2.5 Marks
May 18)
Answer 3
(a) Reporting entity- M Ltd.
e SLtd. (subsidiary) is a related party
e FLtd.(subsidiary) is a related party
(b) Reporting entity- S Ltd.
e M Ltd. (holding company) is a related party
e FLtd. (subsidiary) is a related party
(c) Reporting entity- F Ltd.
e M Ltd. (holding company) is a related party
e S Ltd. (holding company) is a related party
e CLtd. (investor/ investing party) is a related party
(d) Reporting entity- C Ltd.

e FLtd. (associate) is a related party

Question 4
(i) On the basis of provisions of AS 18 'Related Party Disclosures': Identify the related parties in

the following cases:
X Limited holds 60% shares of Y Limited Y Limited holds 55% shares of W Limited Z Limited holds
35% shares of W Limited

(ii) Himalaya Limited sold goods for X 40 Lakhs to Aravalli Limited during financial year ended on
March 31, 2022. The Managing Director of Himalaya Limited owns 80% shares of Aravalli
Limited. The sales were made to Aravalli Limited at normal selling prices followed by Himalaya
Limited. The chief accountant of Himalaya Limited contends that these sales need not require
a different treatment from the other sales made by the company and hence no disclosure is
necessary as per AS 18. You are required to comment on this. (MTP 5 Marks March 23, RTP Nov
’20) (Same concept different figures RTP May’20, RTP Nov’18, Old & New SM)
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Answer 4

(i) X Ltd., Y Ltd. & W Ltd. are related to each other. Z Ltd. & W Ltd. are related to each other by virtue
of associate relationship. However, neither X Ltd. nor Y Ltd. is related to Z Ltd. and vice versa since
neither control nor significant influence exists between them.

(ii) Himalaya Ltd. and Aravalli Ltd are related parties since key management personnel of Himalaya Ltd.
i.e. its managing director holds 80% in Aravalli Ltd. and hence disclosure of transaction between them
is required irrespective of whether the transaction was done at normal selling price. Hence the
contention of Chief Accountant of Himalaya Ltd that these sales require no disclosure under related
party Transactions, is wrong.

Question 5

(a) Omega Bank Limited holds 25 per cent of the voting power of B Limited. Omega Bank Limited also
provides finance by way of a loan to B Limited at market rates of interest, on account of which, Omega
Bank Limited would have the power to nominate one person to the board of directors of B Limited. Any
major transactions proposed to be entered into by B Limited would need the consent of Omega Bank
Limited. Would Omega Bank Limited be considered as related party for B Ltd. (reporting enterprise)?

(b) A Limited has two Associates, B Limited and C Limited, and owns 25 per cent of the voting power of B
Limited and 30 per cent of the voting power of C Limited. Would Be Limited be considered a related party
for the purpose of financial statements of C Limited? (RTP Nov ‘21)

Answer 5

(a) Omega BankLimited would be arelated party of B Limited. As per AS 18 “associates and joint ventures of the
reporting enterprise and the investing party of venture in respect of which the reporting enterprise is an
associate or a joint venture” are related party relationship. Further, an associate has been defined as “an
enterprise in which an investing reporting party has significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary
nor ajoint venture of the party”. Significant influence has been defined to be “participation in the financial and /or
operating policy decisions of an enterprise, but not control of those policies”. Further, itis given in the standard that
significant influence may be gained by share ownership, agreement or statute. As regards share ownership,
there is a presumption that ownership of 20 per cent or more of the voting power enables the enterprise
to exercise significant influence, unless it could be clearly demonstrated otherwise. In the given example,
Omega Bank Limited exercises significant influence over B Limited by virtue of ownership of 25 per cent of
the voting power. Omega Bank Limited is also a provider of finance for B Limited (as it has provided a loan
to B Limited), and as per the standard, a provider of finance is deemed not to be a related party during its
normal dealings with the enterprise by virtue only of those dealing. However, in this case, the exemption
would not be available to Omega Bank Limited as the exercise of significant influence of Omega Bank
Limited over B Limited has been demonstrated on account of ownership of more than 20 per cent of voting
power. Accordingly, Omega Bank Limited would be construed to be a related party in the financial
statements of B Limited and consequently, the latter would be required to disclose the transactions with
Omega Bank Limited in its financial statements.

(b) Both B Limited and C Limited are ‘associates’ of A Limited. Follow-associates cannot be regarded as a
related parties only by virtue of the relationship. AS 18 states that “enterprise that directly, or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by, or are under common control with, the
reporting enterprise” are related parties. Further, it is given that “associates and joint ventures of the
reporting enterprise and the investing party or venture in respect of which the reporting enterprise is an
associate or a joint venture” are also related parties. As B Limited is not an associate of C Limited, nor is it
being controlled, directly or indirectly, by C Limited or is not so controlling C Limited, it is not a related party
of C Limited.

Prakshal Shah | 8779794646 .
Chapter 4.4 AS 18- Related Party Disclosures



VIVITSUaas

STRIVING TOWARDS KNOWLEDGE

Question 6
R Ltd. has 60% voting right in S Ltd. S Ltd. has 15% voting right in T Ltd. R Ltd. directly enjoys voting
right of 10% in T Ltd. T Ltd. is a listed company and regularly supplies goods to R Ltd. The management
of T Ltd. has not disclosed its relationship with R Ltd. You are required to assess the situation from the
view point of AS 18 on Related Party Disclosures. (RTP May 21)

Answer 6
AS 18 ‘Related Party Disclosures’, defines related party as one that has at any time during the reporting
period, the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and/or operating decisions.

Definition for Control

Here, control is defined as ownership directly or indirectly of more than one-half of the voting power of
an enterprise; and Significant Influence is defined as participation in the financial and/or operating policy
decisions of an enterprise but not control of those policies.

Nature of Relationship

R Ltd. has direct economic interest in T Ltd. to the extent of 10%, and through S Ltd. in which it is the
majority shareholders, it has further control of 9% in T Ltd. (60% of S Ltd.’s 15%). These two taken
together (10% + 9%) make the total control of 19%.

Conclusion

In the present case, control of R Ltd. in T Ltd. directly and through S Ltd., is only 19%. Significant influence
may also not be exercised as an investing party (R Ltd.) holds, directly or indirectly through intermediaries
only 19% of the voting power of the T Ltd. Accordingly, R Ltd. and T Ltd. are not related parties. Hence
related party disclosure, as per AS 18, is not required.

Question 7
Is remuneration paid to Board of Directors a related party transaction? Explain. (RTP May 18)

Answer 7
In case of a Company, the Managing Director, whole time director, manager and any person in accordance
with whose directions or instructions the board of directors of the company is accustomed to act, are
usually considered Key Managerial Personnel (KMP). Persons who do not have the authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the enterprise would not be KMP.
Conversely, persons without any formal titles may be considered to be KMP, if they plan, direct and control
the activities of the enterprise.

Further, as per Sec 2(76) of Companies Act, 2013, a related party includes a director or his relative. Sec
2(34) defines a director as a director appointed to the Board of a Company. Hence, remuneration paid to
Board of Directors will be considered as related party transaction.

Question 8
a) Inrespect of a key supplier who is dependent on the company for its existence and the company enjoys
influence over the prices of this supplier (which may not be formally demonstrable), can the supplier and
the company be considered as related parties?
b) Define “Key management personnel” in the context of AS 18. (RTP May 22)
Answer 8
(a) The supplier and the company cannot be considered to be related parties merely because the latter is able
to influence the transaction price between the parties. Paragraph 3 of AS 18 states that “enterprises that
directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by, or are under
common control with, the reporting enterprise” are considered to be related party relationships. However,
the conditions which define the existence of control, as follows, are not satisfied in the given example.
e ‘ownership, directly or indirectly, of more than one-half of the voting power of an enterprise, or
e Control of the composition of the board of directors in the case of a company or of the composition of the
corresponding governing body in case of any other enterprise, or
e asubstantial interest in voting power and the power to direct, by statue or agreement, the financial and/or
operating policies of the enterprise”. Paragraph 10 of the standard defines significant influence as
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“participation in the financial and/or operating policy decisions of an enterprise, but not control of those
policies”. In the given example, although the supplier and the company have entered into a commercial
transaction, the terms of which are influenced by the latter because of its better bargaining power in the
specific market for such goods, it cannot be concluded that there is participation in the financial and/or
operating policy decisions. Therefore, as the conditions specified by the Standard for being classified as a
related party are not satisfied in the given example, the company cannot be said to be related to the supplier.
This view is supported by paragraph 4 (b) of the Standard which states that “a single customer, supplier,
franchiser, distributor, or general agent with whom an enterprise transacts a significant volume of business
merely by virtue of the resulting economic dependence” would not be deemed to be related parties.

(b) In context of AS 18, “Key management personnel” are those persons who have the authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the reporting enterprise. For example,
in the case of a company, the managing director(s), whole time director(s), manager and any person in
accordance with whose directions or instructions the board of directors of the company is accustomed to
act, are usually considered key management personnel.

Question 9
Identify the related parties in the following cases as per AS-18
(i) Maya Ltd. holds 61 % shares of Sheetal Ltd. Sheetal Ltd. holds 51 % shares of Fair Ltd.Care Ltd.

holds 49% shares of Fair Ltd. (Give your answer - Reporting Entity wise for Maya Ltd., Sheetal
Ltd., Care Ltd. and Fair Ltd.) (RTP Nov ’'23)
(ii) Mr. Subhash Kumar is Managing Director of a Ltd. and also holds 72% capital of B Ltd.
(PYP 5 Marks May '19)
Answer 9
(i) a) Reporting entity- Maya Ltd.
. Sheetal Ltd. (subsidiary) is a related party
) Fair Ltd.(subsidiary) is a related party
(b) Reporting entity- Sheetal Ltd.
. Maya Ltd. (holding company) is a related party
. Fair Ltd. (subsidiary) is a related party
(c) Reporting entity- Fair Ltd.
. Maya Ltd. (holding company) is a related party
. Sheetal Ltd. (holding company) is a related party
. Care Ltd. (investor/ investing party) is a related party
(d) Reporting entity- Care Ltd.
. Fair Ltd. (associate) is a related party

(i) Mr. Subhash Kumar is Key management personnel as he has the authority for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of A Ltd. He also holds substantial interest in B Ltd. as he holds 72%
capital ofB Ltd. Thus, Mr. Subhash is related party for both A Ltd. and B Ltd. Moreover, as per the
definition of related party relationship described in para 3 of AS 18, enterprises over which
Subhash is able to exercise significant influence are also related parties. Thus, a Ltd. and B Ltd. will
also be construed as related to each other.

Question 10
Following transactions are disclosed as on 31st March, 2018:
Goods sold amounting to Rs. 50 lakhs to associate company during the 1st quarter ended on 30th June,
2017. After that related party relationship ceased to exist. However, goods were supplied as was
supplied to any other ordinary customer. Decide whether transactions of the entire year have to be
disclosed as related party transaction. (PYP 2.5 Marks, Nov ’18)
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Answer 10
As per provision of AS 18, the transactions only for the period in which related party relationships exist
need to be reported.

Hence, transactions of the entity with its associate company for the first quarter ending 30.06.2017 only
are required to be disclosed as related party transactions. Transactions of the entire year need not be
disclosed as related party transactions and transactions for the period (after 1st July) in which related
party relationship did not exist need not be reported.

Hence transaction of sale of goods with the associate company for first quarter ending 30th June, 2017 for
Rs. 50 Lakhs only are required to be disclosed as related party transaction on 31.3.18.

Question 11
Answer the following with respect to AS-18:
(i) ABC Ltd. sold goods of * 2,00,000 to its associate company for the 1stquarter ending 30.06.2022.
After that the related party relationship ceased to exist. However, goods were supplied to any
other ordinary customer. Decide whether transactions of the entire year have to be disclosed as
related party transaction.

(ii) If the majority of directors of Arjun Ltd. constitute the majority of the Board of another Company
Bheem Ltd. in their individual capacity as professionals (and not by virtue of their being Directors
in Arjun Ltd.). Are both the companies related?

(iii) Asha Ltd. sells all the manufactured furniture of ~ 1,00,00,000 to Sasha Ltd, as per agreement.
Sasha Ltd. is the only customer to Asha Ltd. In the financial statements, Asha Ltd. wants to present
Sasha company as a related party. Comment on the disclosure requirement. (PYP 5 Marks
May ’23)

Answer 11

i)  As per AS 18, parties are considered to be related if any time during the reporting period one party
has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party.
Transactions of ABC Ltd. with its associate company for the first quarter ending 30.06.2022 only are
required to be disclosed as related party transactions as the company has the ability to exercise
significant influence only till 30.6.2022.

The transactions for the period in which related party relationship did not exist need not be reported.

ii) In the given case, Arjun Ltd. cannot be said to control the composition of board of directors of
Bheem Ltd. as the directors have been appointed in their individual capacity as professionals and
not by virtue of their being directors in Arjun Ltd.

Hence, it cannot be concluded that the companies are related merely because the majority of the directors
of one company became the majority of the directors of the second in their individual capacity as
professionals.

iii) In the context of AS 18, a single customer, supplier, franchiser, distributor, or general agent with
whom an enterprise transacts a significant volume of business cannot be construed as Related Party
Relationship merely by virtue of the resulting economic dependence. There is an economic
dependence between the companies but no one controls or exercise significant influence on the
other.

In the given case, Asha Ltd. need not report Sasha Company as its related party in its financial statements.
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Chapter 4.5
AS 20- EPS

Question 1
From the following information, you are required to compute Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share
(EPS) of M/s. XYZ Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2019:

Net Profit for the year after tax: Rs. 75,00,000

Number of Equity Shares of Rs.10 each outstanding: Rs. 10,00,000
1,00,000, 8% Convertible Debentures of Rs. 100 each were issued by the Company at the
beginning of the year. 1,10,000 Equity Shares were supposed to be issued on conversion.
Consider rate of IncomeTax as 30% (MTP 5 Marks Oct’18, RTP May 20) (Same concept different
figures- MTP 5 Marks Nov’21, RTP Nov’19, RTP May’19, RTP Nov’22, RTP May’18)

Answer 1
Computation of basic earnings per share
Net profit for the current year / Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year Rs. 75,00,000/10,00,000 = Rs. 7.50 per share

Adjusted net profit for the current year

Computation of diluted earnings per share
P gsp Weighted average number of equity shares

Adjusted net profit for the current year

Rs.
Net profit for the current year 75,00,000
Add: Interest expense for the current year 8,00,000
Less: Tax relating to interest expense (30% of Rs.8,00,000) (2,40,000)
Adjusted net profit for the current year 80,60,000

Number of equity shares resulting from conversion of debentures

=1,10,000 Equity shares (given in the Question)

Weighted average number of equity shares used to compute diluted earnings per share
=11,10,000 shares (10,00,000 + 1,10,000)

Diluted earnings per share

=Rs. 80,60,000/ 11,10,000

= Rs. 7.26 per share

Note: Conversion of convertible debentures into Equity Share will be dilutive potential equity shares.
Hence, to compute the adjusted profit the interest paid on such debentures will be added back as the
same would not be payable in case these are converted into equity shares.

Question 2
From the following information, you are required to compute the basic and adjusted Earnings per
share:
Net profit for 2015-16 11 lakh
Net profit for 2016-17 15 lakh
No. of shares issued before rights issue 5 lakhs
Right issue One for every 5 held
Right issue price 15 per share
Last date of exercising right option 1-06-2016
Fair value of shares before right issue 21 per share

(MTP 5 Marks- Mar’19, Mar’18) (Same concept different figures MTP 5 Marks May’20, MTP 5 Marks
Sep’22, RTP Nov’20, RTP Nov’18, May’23, PYP 5 Marks Nov’19, Old & New SM)
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Answer 2
Computation of theoretical ex-rights fair value per Share

Fair value of all outstanding shares immediately prior to exercise of rights+Total amount received from exercise of rights

Number of Shares outstanding prior to exercise+number of Shares issued in the exercise

(Rs.21.00 x 5,00,000 Shares) + (Rs.15.00 x 1,00,000 Shares)
5,00,000 Shares + 1,00,000 Shares

Theoretical ex-rights fair value per share = Rs. 20.00
Computation of earnings per share

(a) Computation of adjustment factor

(b) Fair value per share prior to exercise of rights _ (21.00) _

=1.05

Computation of earnings per share Year 2015-16 | Year 2016-17
EPS for the year 2015-16 as originally reported: Rs.2.20
(Rs. 11,00,000/5,00,000 shares)
EPS for the year 2015-16 restated for rights issue: Rs.2.10
[Rs. 11,00,000/ (5,00,000 shares x 1.05)]
EPS for the year 2016-17 including effects of rights issue Rs. 2.55
15,00,000

2 10
(500,000 x 13) + (6,00,000 x 13)

Theoretical ex—rights value per share - (20.00)

Question 3
Explain the concept of ‘weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period’.
Also compute, based on AS 20, the weighted average number of equity shares in the following case:
(MTP 5 Marks April 21, April 22)

No. of shares
1st April, 2020 Balance of equity shares 7,20,000
31st August, 2020 Equity shares issued for cash 2,40,000
1st February, 2021 Equity shares bought back 1,20,000
31st March, 2021 Balance of equity shares 8,40,000
Answer 3

As per AS 20, “Earnings Per Share”, the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period reflects the fact that the amount of shareholders’ capital may have varied during the period
as a result of a larger or less number of shares outstanding at any time. For the purpose of calculating
basic earnings per share, the number of equity shares should be the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period.

Weighted average number of equity shares:

7,20,000 X 5/12 =3,00,000 shares
9,60,000 X 5/12 =4,00,000 shares
8,40,000 X 2/12 =1,40,000 shares

= 8,40,000 shares

Question 4
On 1st April, 2021 a company had 6,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each (Rs. 5 paid up by all
shareholders). On 1st September, 2019 the remaining Rs. 5 was called up and paid by all shareholders
except one shareholder having 60,000 equity shares. The net profit for the year ended 31st March,
2022 was Rs. 21,96,000 after considering dividend on preference shares and dividend distribution tax
on such dividend totaling to Rs. 3,40,000. You are required to compute Basic EPS for the year ended
31st March, 2022 as per Accounting Standard 20 "Earnings Per Share". (MTP 5 Marks Mar’22, Oct ‘20

& Oct’21, March ’23 & Oct ‘23, PYP 5 Marks, May ’18, Old & New SM)
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Answer 4

Net Profit attributable to equity shareholders

Basic Earnings per share (EPS) = — - . ,
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year

_ 21,96,000
B 4,57,500 Shares (as per working note)

= Rs. 4.80 per share

Working Note:
Calculation of weighted average number of equity shares

As per AS 20 ‘Earnings Per Share’, partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of equity share
to the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividend relative to a fully paid equity share
during the reporting period. Assuming that the partly paid shares are entitled to participate in the
dividend to the extent of amount paid, weighted average number of shares will be calculated as

follows:
Date No. of equity Amount paid Weighted average no. of equity
shares per share shares
Rs. Rs. Rs.
1.4.2020 6,00,000 5 6,00,000 x 5/10 x 5/12 = 1,25,000
1.9.2020 5,40,000 10 5,40,000 x 7/12 = 3,15,000
1.9.2020 60,000 5 60,000 x 5/10 x 7/12 = 17,500
Total weighted average equity shares 4,57,500
Question 5

AB Limited is a company engaged in manufacturing industrial packaging equipment. As per the terms
of an agreement entered with its debenture holders, the company is required to appropriate
adequate portion of its profits to a specific reserve over the period of maturity of the debentures such
that, at the redemption date, the reserve constitutes at least half the value of such debentures. As
such appropriations are not available for distribution to the equity shareholders, AB Limited has
excluded this from the numerator in the computation of Basic EPS. Is this treatment correct as per
provisions of AS 20? (RTP Nov 21)

Answer 5

The appropriation made to such a mandatory reserve created for the redemption of debentures would
be included in the net profit attributable to equity shareholders for the computation of Basic EPS. AS
20 states tha